


MATURITY SCHEDULE

Maturity Date
(November 1) Amount Rate Yield Price

CUSIP*

(Base 13048T)

2016 $   700,000 2.000% 0.800% 101.515 XN8
2017 715,000 2.000 1.270 101.629 XP3
2018 740,000 4.000 1.560 107.752 XQ1
2019 770,000 4.000 1.780 109.091 XR9
2020 805,000 5.000 2.070 114.560 XS7
2021 845,000 5.000 2.390 115.115 XT5
2022 885,000 5.000 2.690 115.161
2023 935,000 5.000 2.900 115.342 XV0
2024 980,000 5.000 3.090 115.292 XW8
2025 1,030,000 5.000 3.260 115.080 XX6
2026 1,085,000 5.000 3.400 113.769 C XY4
2027 1,140,000 5.000 3.510 112.752 C XZ1

$6,640,000 5.000% Term Bonds due November 1, 2032 Priced to Yield 3.850% C

* 13048TYA5

$12,575,000 5.000% Term Bonds due November 1, 2039 Priced to Yield 4.120% C 
*: 13048TYB3

_________________
C

*

American Bankers Association.  This data is not intended to create a database and does not serve in any 



 

 

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the California Municipal Finance 
Authority (the “Authority”), the Del Harbor Foundation (the “Corporation”), the Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation, known as the Harbor Regional Center (“HRC”) or the Underwriter to give any information or to make 
any representations, other than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, such information or 
representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Authority, the Corporation, HRC, or the 
Underwriter.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor 
shall there be any sale of, the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to 
make such offer, solicitation or sale. 

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds. Statements 
contained in this Official Statement that involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, whether or not expressly 
described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of fact. 

The information set forth herein has been furnished by the Authority, the Corporation, and HRC and 
includes information from sources that are believed to be reliable, but the Authority, the Corporation, and HRC do 
not guarantee the completeness or accuracy of the information from such sources.  The information and expressions 
of opinion contained herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official Statement 
nor any sale made shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs 
of the Authority, the Corporation, or HRC, or other matters described herein since the date hereof.   

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this 
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

This Official Statement, including any supplement or amendment hereto, is intended to be deposited with 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board through the Electronic Municipal Marketplace Access (EMMA) 
website.  The Authority, the Corporation and HRC each maintains a website.  The information presented therein is 
not part of this Official Statement and should not be relied on in making investment decisions with respect to the 
Bonds. Unless otherwise expressly stated, references to Internet websites in this Official Statement are shown for 
reference and convenience only, and none of their content (including any content on the Authority, the Corporation 
and HRC’s websites) is incorporated in this Official Statement by reference.  The Authority, the Corporation and 
HRC make no representation regarding the accuracy or completeness of the information presented on such websites. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER 
ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 
BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  
SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

___________________________________ 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IN 

THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute “forward-
looking statements.”  Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as “plan,” “project,” 
“expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “believe,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words.  The achievement of certain 
results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, 
uncertainties and other factors that may cause actual results, performance or achievements described to be materially 
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking 
statements.  Except as otherwise noted, neither the Authority, the Corporation nor HRC plan to issue any updates or 
revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when its expectations or events, conditions or circumstances on 
which such statements are based occur. 
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Regional Centers 

HRC is one of 21 regional centers (the “Regional Centers”) in California (the “State”) that 
coordinate services under contracts with the State to persons with developmental disabilities as mandated 
under the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (the “Lanterman Act”). State contracts with 
the Regional Centers are typically for a term of five years, with funding in each year subject to 
appropriation by the State Legislature. The Lanterman Act defines “developmental disability” as mental 
retardation, cerebral palsy, epilepsy, autism or other conditions similar to mental retardation that require 
treatment similar to that required by persons with mental retardation which occur before 18 years of age.   

Under the Lanterman Act, Regional Centers are responsible for eligibility determinations and 
client assessment, the development of a program plan for each individual receiving services, and case 
management.  In general, Regional Centers pay for services only if an individual does not have private 
insurance or they cannot refer an individual to services that are provided by the State or a local agency. 
Regional Centers purchase services such as transportation, health care, respite care, day programs and 
residential care provided by community-based service providers. 

Harbor Regional Center 

HRC was incorporated on May 3, 1977. Since 1977, HRC has contracted with the State to 
provide services for the developmentally disabled and their families pursuant to the Lanterman Act.  
HRC’s contracted revenues from the State exceeded $159 million in fiscal year 2014-15.  HRC’s 
preliminary allocation (historically, 80% of the annual allocation) for the current fiscal year 2015-16 
budget is approximately $128.5 million, representing $19.5 million for operations and approximately 
$109 million for purchases of services.  HRC provides services to approximately 12,000 consumers.  
HRC’s service area includes over 20 cities covering more than 125 square miles of the southwestern 
quadrant of the County of Los Angeles (the “County”).  HRC is a California nonprofit corporation and a 
tax-exempt organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”). See APPENDIX A – “CERTAIN INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DEL HARBOR 
FOUNDATION AND THE HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER.” 

The Corporation 

The Corporation is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and a tax-exempt 
organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  The Corporation was established on June 11, 
2009 to facilitate and augment the coordination of services and programs of HRC.  The Corporation was 
organized exclusively as a supporting organization of HRC. See APPENDIX A – “CERTAIN 
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DEL HARBOR FOUNDATION AND THE HARBOR 
REGIONAL CENTER.” 

The Bonds 

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery, will be issued in fully registered form in 
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (each an “Authorized Denomination”). Interest 
on the Bonds is payable semiannually on each May 1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 2015 
(each, an “Interest Payment Date”).  The Bonds are subject to optional and mandatory redemption prior to 
their maturity as described herein.  See “THE BONDS – Redemption” herein. See APPENDIX D – 
“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS.” 
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Book-Entry System 

The Bonds will be registered in the name of a nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New 
York, New York (“DTC”), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds 
may be made in book-entry form only, through brokers and dealers who are, or who act through, DTC 
Participants. Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will not receive physical delivery of the Bonds. Payments of 
principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds are payable by the Trustee to DTC, which will in 
turn remit such payments to the DTC Participants, which will in turn remit such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  See APPENDIX C – “BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.” 

Sources of Payment of the Bonds 

The Authority is obligated to pay the Bonds solely from Revenues and the other funds available 
therefor under the Indenture. Under the Loan Agreement, the Corporation has pledged Gross Revenues 
(as defined herein) to the payment of the loan payments to be made under the Loan Agreement (“Loan 
Payments”), which are due in amounts and at the times necessary to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest to the date of maturity or redemption of the Bonds, when due. The primary source of Gross 
Revenues and thus repayment for the Bonds is rent received by the Corporation under the Office Lease.  
The term of the Office Lease will exceed the final maturity of the Bonds.   HRC will make rent payments 
under the Office Lease from moneys received from the State pursuant to HRC’s contract under the 
Lanterman Act. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS” and 
“INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS – State Budget and Funding” herein. 

NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, ANY AUTHORITY MEMBER OR ANY PERSON 
EXECUTING THE BONDS IS LIABLE PERSONALLY ON THE BONDS OR SUBJECT TO 
ANY PERSONAL LIABILITY OR ACCOUNTABILITY BY REASON OF THEIR ISSUANCE.  
THE BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE SOLELY 
FROM AND SECURED BY THE PLEDGE OF REVENUES UNDER THE INDENTURE. 
NEITHER THE AUTHORITY, ITS MEMBERS, THE STATE, NOR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISIONS SHALL BE DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY OR MORALLY 
OBLIGATED TO USE ANY OTHER MONEYS OR ASSETS TO PAY ALL OR ANY PORTION 
OF THE DEBT SERVICE DUE ON THE BONDS, TO LEVY OR TO PLEDGE ANY FORM OF 
TAXATION WHATSOEVER THEREFOR OR TO MAKE ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THEIR 
PAYMENT. THE BONDS ARE NOT A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE 
AUTHORITY, ITS MEMBERS, THE STATE OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS, 
NOR DO THEY CONSTITUTE INDEBTEDNESS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY 
CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION.  THE AUTHORITY HAS NO 
TAXING POWER. 

Debt Service Reserve Fund 

Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will also be secured by 
amounts on deposit in the California Municipal Finance Authority Refunding Revenue Bonds (Harbor 
Regional Center Project) Series 2015 Debt Service Reserve Fund (the “Debt Service Reserve Fund”) 
established under the Indenture.  On the date of delivery of the Bonds, the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
will be funded at the Debt Service Reserve Requirement in the amount of $2,131,600.00. 
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Deed of Trust 

To secure its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture, the Corporation will 
execute and deliver a Deed of Trust with Assignment of Rents and Fixture Filing, dated as of July 1, 2015 
(the “Deed of Trust”), for the benefit of the Trustee, as trustee for the Owners of the Bonds, encumbering 
the Facilities. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS – Deed of Trust” 
and “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS – Limitations Relating to the Deed of Trust” herein. 

Continuing Disclosure 

The Corporation and HRC will agree in a Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of July 1, 
2015 (the “Continuing Disclosure Agreement”), by and among the Corporation, HRC and the Wells 
Fargo Bank, National Association, as Dissemination Agent thereunder, to provide, or to cause to be 
provided, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access system 
(the “EMMA System”), certain annual financial information and operating data relating to the 
Corporation and HRC and, in a timely manner, notice of certain events.  These covenants have been made 
in order to assist the Underwriter in complying with Rule 15c2-12, as amended (the “Rule 15c2-12”) 
adopted by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” and APPENDIX E – “FORM OF 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

Forward-Looking Statements 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement, including in 
Appendix A attached hereto, constitute “forward-looking statements.”  Such statements are generally 
identifiable by the terminology used such as “plan,” “expect,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar 
words. The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking 
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual 
results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Although such 
expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are believed to be reasonable, there can be no 
assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct. The Authority and the Corporation are not 
obligated to issue any updates or revisions to the forward-looking statements if or when the expectations, 
events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based occur. 

Additional Information 

The brief descriptions of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Deed of Trust, the 
Office Lease, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and documents, statutes, reports and other 
instruments included in this Official Statement do not purport to be complete, comprehensive or 
definitive. All references to such documents and other documents, statutes, reports and other instruments 
are qualified in their entirety by reference to such document, statute, report or instrument. Copies of the 
Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Deed of Trust, the Office Lease and the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement may be obtained, upon written request, from the Trustee. 
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REFUNDING PLAN 

The Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) refunding on an advance basis the Prior Bonds, 
(ii) funding a debt service reserve fund for the Bonds, (iii) funding a funded interest fund for the Bonds 
through November 1, 2015, and (iv) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available amounts, will be used to 
refund on an advance basis the Prior Bonds. The Prior Bonds were issued pursuant to an Indenture of 
Trust, dated as of November 1, 2009 (the “Prior Indenture”), by and among the Authority, the 
Corporation, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as successor trustee (the “Prior Trustee”).  
Pursuant to the terms of an Escrow Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2015 (the “Escrow Agreement”), by 
and between the Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as escrow agent (the “Escrow 
Agent”), a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available moneys (collectively, the 
“Escrow Deposit”), will be deposited into the escrow fund established under the Escrow Agreement.  The 
Escrow Deposit will be sufficient to purchase United States Government Securities (as defined in the 
Prior Indenture), the principal and interest on which when due will provide moneys that, together with 
uninvested moneys deposited with the Escrow Agent, will be sufficient to pay the scheduled principal of 
and interest on the Prior Bonds coming due on and prior to November 1, 2019, and to redeem the Prior 
Bonds on November 1, 2019 (the “Redemption Date”) at a redemption price of 100% of the principal 
amount thereof plus accrued interest to said redemption date. 

Grant Thornton LLP, certified public accountants (the “Verification Agent”), will deliver a report 
stating that the firm has verified the accuracy of mathematical computations concerning the adequacy of 
the Escrow Deposit deposited in the Escrow Fund.  See “VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL 
COMPUTATIONS” herein. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF PROCEEDS 

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available amounts, are expected to be applied as 
follows: 

Estimated Sources of Funds  
 Principal Amount of Bonds $29,845,000.00 
 Net Original Issue Premium 2,832,894.45 
 Amounts Released from Prior Bonds     3,100,094.17 
  Total $35,777,988.62 
  
Estimated Uses of Funds  
 Escrow Fund $32,599,326.70 
 Funded Interest Fund(1) 393,504.04 
 Debt Service Reserve Fund 2,131,600.00 
 Costs of Issuance Fund(2)       653,557.88 
  Total $35,777,988.62 

_______________________________ 
(1)  Represents funded interest through November 1, 2015. 
(2)  Includes Underwriter’s discount, legal fees, fees and expenses of the Trustee, initial administration fee 
of the Authority, rating agency fees, printing costs, and other costs incurred in connection with the issuance 
of the Bonds. 
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DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE 

The following table sets forth the annual debt service due on the Bonds. 

Year Ending 
June 30 Principal Interest Debt Service 

2016 -- $  1,107,907.22 $  1,107,907.22 
2017 $   700,000 1,427,700.00 2,127,700.00 
2018 715,000 1,413,550.00 2,128,550.00 
2019 740,000 1,391,600.00 2,131,600.00 
2020 770,000 1,361,400.00 2,131,400.00 
2021 805,000 1,325,875.00 2,130,875.00 
2022 845,000 1,284,625.00 2,129,625.00 
2023 885,000 1,241,375.00 2,126,375.00 
2024 935,000 1,195,875.00 2,130,875.00 
2025 980,000 1,148,000.00 2,128,000.00 
2026 1,030,000 1,097,750.00 2,127,750.00 
2027 1,085,000 1,044,875.00 2,129,875.00 
2028 1,140,000 989,250.00 2,129,250.00 
2029 1,200,000 930,750.00 2,130,750.00 
2030 1,260,000 869,250.00 2,129,250.00 
2031 1,325,000 804,625.00 2,129,625.00 
2032 1,390,000 736,750.00 2,126,750.00 
2033 1,465,000 665,375.00 2,130,375.00 
2034 1,540,000 590,250.00 2,130,250.00 
2035 1,615,000 511,375.00 2,126,375.00 
2036 1,700,000 428,500.00 2,128,500.00 
2037 1,790,000 341,250.00 2,131,250.00 
2038 1,880,000 249,500.00 2,129,500.00 
2039 1,975,000 153,125.00 2,128,125.00 
2040     2,075,000          51,875.00     2,126,875.00 
Total $29,845,000 $22,362,407.22 $52,207,407.22 

THE BONDS 

General 

The Bonds will be issued and sold in the aggregate principal amounts set forth on the inside cover 
page hereof as fully registered bonds in Authorized Denominations.  Interest on the Bonds is payable on 
each Interest Payment Date.  The principal of, premium, if any, and interest with respect to the Bonds is 
payable by the Trustee to DTC, which will in turn remit such principal, premium, if any, and interest to 
the DTC Participants, which will in turn remit such principal, premium, if any, and interest to the 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See APPENDIX D – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 
THE PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS.” 

The Bonds will be dated their date of issuance and will bear interest (calculated on the basis of a 
360-day year comprised of twelve 30-day months) from the Interest Payment Date next preceding the 
date of authentication thereof, or if a Bond is authenticated on or before the Record Date for the first 
Interest Payment Date, from its initial date of delivery; provided, however, that if, as of the date of 
authentication of any Bond, interest thereon is in default, such Bond will bear interest from the Interest 
Payment Date to which interest has previously been paid or made available for payment thereon. 

The Corporation will make monthly deposits with the Trustee in the amounts set forth in the Loan 
Agreement such that eight Business Days preceding each Interest Payment Date or Principal Installment 
Date, as applicable, an amount equal to the amount of the interest or principal payable on the Bonds on 
such Interest Payment Date or Principal Installment Date, as applicable, less any amounts then on deposit 
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in the Bond Fund is available to pay the interest or principal on the Bonds payable on such Interest 
Payment Date or Principal Installment Date, as applicable. 

Redemption 

Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2026, are subject to 
redemption prior to their respective stated maturities, as a whole or in part, on any date on and after 
November 1, 2025, at the principal amount of the Bonds to be redeemed, without premium, plus unpaid 
accrued interest, if any, to the date of redemption, from any moneys received by the Trustee from the 
Corporation pursuant to the Loan Agreement.  The maturities and the principal amount of the Bonds of 
each maturity to be redeemed will be as directed by the Corporation. 

Mandatory Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on November 1, 2032 (the “2032 Term Bonds”) 
are subject to mandatory redemption, in part, by lot, from Mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on each 
November 1 from and after November 1, 2028, at the principal amount of the 2032 Term Bonds to be 
redeemed, without premium. Sinking Fund Installments for the 2032 Term Bonds maturing on November 
1, 2032, are due on the following dates and in the following amounts: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Installment Due Dates 

(November 1) 

 
Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Installments 

2028 $1,200,000 
2029 1,260,000 
2030 1,325,000 
2031 1,390,000 
2032 (maturity) 1,465,000 

 

The Bonds maturing on November 1, 2039 (the “2039 Term Bonds”) are subject to mandatory 
redemption, in part, by lot, from Mandatory Sinking Fund Installments on each November 1 from and 
after November 1, 2033, at the principal amount of the 2039 Term Bonds to be redeemed, without 
premium. Sinking Fund Installments for the 2039 Term Bonds maturing on November 1, 2039, are due on 
the following dates and in the following amounts: 

Mandatory Sinking Fund 
Installment Due Dates 

(November 1) 

 
Mandatory Sinking 
Fund Installments 

2033 $1,540,000 
2034 1,615,000 
2035 1,700,000 
2036 1,790,000 
2037 1,880,000 
2038 1,975,000 
2039 (maturity) 2,075,000 

 

If the Term Bonds are optionally redeemed, the remaining Sinking Fund Installments shall be 
reduced in an aggregate amount equal to the principal amount of such Term Bonds so redeemed, as 
directed by the Corporation, or in the absence of such direction, as proportionately as possible in 
Authorized Denominations. 
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Redemption Procedures 

Notice of Redemption.  The Trustee, for and on behalf of the Authority, shall give notice of any 
redemption by first class mail, postage prepaid, not less than twenty (20) nor more than sixty (60) days 
prior to the redemption date to (i) the Owner of such Bond at the address shown on the Bond Register on 
the date such notice is mailed; (ii) the Securities Depositories; (iii) one or more Information Services; (iv) 
the Authority, (v) the Corporation, and (vi) the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”).  
Notice of redemption to the Securities Depositories, the Information Services, and the MSRB shall be 
given by telecopy or other electronic means.  Each notice of redemption shall state the date of such notice, 
the date of issue of the Bonds to be redeemed, the redemption date, the redemption price, the place of 
redemption (including the name and appropriate address of the Trustee), the principal amount, the CUSIP 
numbers (if any) of the Bonds to be redeemed and, if less than all, the distinctive certificate numbers of 
the Bonds to be redeemed and, in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, the respective portions of 
the principal amount thereof to be redeemed.  Each such notice shall also state that the interest on the 
Bonds designated for redemption shall cease to accrue from and after such redemption date and that on 
said date there will become due and payable on each of said Bonds the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed and any unpaid interest accrued thereon to the redemption date) and shall require that such 
Bonds be then surrendered at the address of the Trustee specified in the redemption notice.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, failure by the Trustee to give notice pursuant to this paragraph to the 
Authority or any one or more of the Information Services or the Securities Depositories, or the MSRB or 
the insufficiency of any such notices shall not affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for redemption.  
Failure to mail the notices required by this paragraph to any Owner of any Bonds designated for 
redemption, or any defect in any notice so mailed, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for 
redemption of any other Bonds. 

With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds, unless upon the giving of such notice 
such Bonds are to be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of the Indenture, such notice shall 
also state that such redemption shall be conditional upon the receipt by the Trustee on or prior to the date 
fixed for such redemption of amounts sufficient to pay the redemption price of such Bonds to be 
redeemed, and that if such amounts shall not have been so received said notice shall be of no force and 
effect and the Authority shall not be required to redeem such Bonds. If such notice of redemption contains 
such a condition and such amounts are not so received, the redemption shall not be made and the Trustee 
shall within a reasonable time thereafter give notice, to the Persons and in the manner in which the notice 
of redemption was given, that such amounts were not so received. 

Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  The principal amount of Bonds of each maturity to be 
redeemed will be as specified by the Corporation.  If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are called 
for redemption, the Trustee is required to select the Bonds of such maturities, or any given portion 
thereof, to be redeemed, by lot in such manner as it may determine.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
less than all of the Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, selection of the Bonds to be redeemed will 
be made in accordance with customary practices of DTC or the applicable successor depository, as the 
case may be. 

Effect of Redemption.  Notice of redemption having been duly given as described under “Notice 
of Redemption” above, and moneys for payment of the redemption price being held by the Trustee, the 
Bonds so called for redemption will, on the redemption date designated in such notice, become due and 
payable at the redemption price specified in such notice, interest on the Bonds so called for redemption 
will cease to accrue, such Bonds will cease to be entitled to any lien, benefit or security under the 
Indenture, and the Owners of said Bonds will have no rights in respect thereof except to receive payment 
of the redemption price thereof (including interest, if any, accrued to the redemption date), without 
interest accrued on any funds held after the redemption date to pay such redemption price. 
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS 

Lanterman Act; Department of Developmental Services; State Budget 

In 1969, the State Legislature enacted the California Welfare & Institutions Code section 4500 et 
seq., known as the Lanterman Act, which created a State funded entitlement program for qualifying State 
residents with developmental disabilities, those at risk of developing a developmental disability, and their 
families.  The Lanterman Act mandates that the State’s services for the developmentally disabled be 
administered through a network of private nonprofit corporations.  

There are currently 21 Regional Centers that operate under contract with the California 
Department of Developmental Services (“DDS”) pursuant to the Lanterman Act.  The Lanterman Act 
creates a framework involving both DDS and the Regional Centers.  DDS has jurisdiction over promoting 
the uniformity and cost-effectiveness of the Regional Centers.  The Regional Centers determine the level 
of services needed and coordinate those services to persons with developmental disabilities. The Regional 
Centers coordinate services and support for over 280,000 children and adults with developmental 
disabilities and infants at risk of developmental delay or disability.  HRC is one of the Regional Centers. 

Each Regional Center is required to undertake during each fiscal year two comprehensive 
evaluations of its budget and funding requirements for the upcoming fiscal year.  Such evaluations are 
conducted in coordination with DDS.  Regional Centers are required to bring any funding insufficiencies 
to the attention of DDS and the Association of Regional Center Agencies (“ARCA”) in time to allow 
ARCA to request that the applicable Regional Center’s funding needs be incorporated into the Governor’s 
January budget proposal and the Governor’s May Revision to the budget proposal.  Each Regional 
Center’s contract provides that if ARCA and the State are not able to agree in any fiscal year on the 
funding allocation process for a Regional Center, no less than 99% of the purchase of service and 
operations requirements of such Regional Center will be funded by January 15 of that fiscal year.  Under 
the Regional Center contracts, each Regional Center is also required to provide monthly Sufficiency of 
Allocation Reports to DDS, identifying and explaining any month to month changes in projected 
expenditures.  Contract amounts for each Regional Center may be adjusted based on the budgetary needs 
of such Regional Center. 

A Regional Center’s contract is typically modified in mid-August following the passage of the 
State’s Budget Act and provides substantially all of the funding needs of the Regional Center.  Contract 
amounts not advanced to the Regional Center are paid by DDS on a monthly basis as reimbursements for 
purchase of service costs incurred by the Regional Center.  Regional Centers return substantially all 
budgeted but unexpended funds to DDS at the end of each fiscal year, with only a small cash balance 
carried from one fiscal year to the next. 
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The following table sets forth Regional Centers’ portion of the DDS Budget for the fiscal years 
2010-11 to 2014-15 and the total State Budget for such years. 

California Department of Developmental Services 
Budget for Regional Centers 

Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2014-15 
(In Millions) 

 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 
Regional Centers $4,060.7 $3,959.9 $4,121.7 $4,381.4 $4,848.5 
Total % Change (0.1)% (2.7)% 4.1% 6.3% 10.7% 
      
Total State Budget $125,254.9 $129,476.9 $142,420.3 $145,300.0 $156,357.6 
Total % Change 5.0% 3.4% 10.0% 2.0% 7.6% 

________________________________________________________ 
Source:  State of California, Department of Finance, Final Budget Summary. 
 

Historically, State funding for Regional Centers has consistently increased, even in fiscal years 
where the total State budget has declined.  However, on February 19, 2009, the State Legislature passed a 
budget-balancing reform package which was signed by Governor Schwarzenegger on February 20, 2009 
and became effective on March 1, 2009 and there were substantial amendments to the budget-balancing 
reform package on July 28, 2009 (the “2009 Budget Act”).  As a result of the 2009 Budget Act, a 3% 
reduction to the Regional Centers’ operations budgets went into effect for fiscal year 2008-09 and 
continued through fiscal year 2009-10.  The reduction in purchase of services budgets meant that rates for 
service providers to the Regional Centers were held constant, but that such providers only received 97% 
of the cost of services they provided.  

Future State actions taken to address budgetary difficulties could have the effect of reducing 
revenues to the Regional Centers, including HRC.  The Corporation and HRC are unable to predict the 
nature, extent or effect of any future reductions, were they to occur, or the impact any such future 
reductions may have on HRC’s finances and operations.  See “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS – 
State Budget and Funding” herein.  In addition, the Corporation and HRC are unable to predict the impact 
of any future State budget actions on Federal resources that historically have been available to the 
Regional Centers. 

In August 2010, the California State Auditor issued a report regarding DDS and the Regional 
Centers. The report, entitled “A More Uniform and Transparent Procurement and Rate-Setting Process 
Would Improve the Cost-Effectiveness of Regional Centers,” is available at 
http://www.bsa.ca.gov/pdfs/reports/2009-118.pdf; such report is not incorporated herein by reference. In 
the transmittal letter of the report to the Governor, the Chief Deputy State Auditor stated that “[o]ur report 
concludes that while most of the expenditures we reviewed for the purchase of services appeared 
allowable and were supported by proper vendor invoices, the regional centers could not consistently 
demonstrate the rationale behind their rate-setting and vendor-selection decisions or how contracts are 
procured. In some cases, the ways in which the regional centers established payment rates and selected 
vendors had the appearance of favoritism or fiscal irresponsibility and did not demonstrate compliance 
with recent statutory amendments attempting to control the costs of purchased services. Further, we found 
that [DDS] systematically audits and reviews whether services purchased for consumers are allowable but 
generally did not examine how regional centers established rates or selected particular vendors for 
services. Lastly, a survey of employees at the six regional centers we visited identified several issues in 
the working environment at some regional centers, including a concern that many regional centers’ 
employees do not feel safe reporting suspected improprieties.” The Chief Deputy State Auditor also stated 
that “[a]fter discussing our concerns with [DDS], it has made a number of improvements to its oversight 
processes, including new fiscal audit procedures designed to evaluate how regional centers establish 
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vendor rates and to ensure compliance with a statutory rate freeze on all negotiated rates. [DDS] also 
developed a written process for receiving and reviewing complaints from regional center employees.” 

In January 2012, the California State Auditor issued a report regarding its findings of the results 
of its prior recommendations, including its recommendations contained in the aforementioned report 
regarding DDS and the Regional Centers. The report is available at 
http://www.bsa.ca.gov/pdfs/reports/2011-041.pdf; such report is not incorporated herein by reference. In 
its report, the California State Auditor noted that of the 17 total recommendations to DDS that the Bureau 
of State Audits had made, DDS had not fully implemented two of such recommendations, namely, (i) to 
require the Regional Centers to document the basis of any individual program plan-related vendor 
selection and specify which comparable vendors (when available) were evaluated, and (ii) to review a 
representative sample of such documentation as part of its biennial waiver reviews or fiscal audits to 
ensure that Regional Centers are complying with state law and particularly with the requirement for 
selection of the least costly available provider of comparable service. In each case, DDS indicated that it 
will not implement the recommendation because it would be inconsistent with the Lanterman Act, which 
delegates a great deal of decision making to the Regional Centers. DDS responded to the Bureau of State 
Audits that it will use its oversight authority to ensure adherence to the law, and issued a directive on 
August 16, 2010 to Regional Centers to update their internal review process and associated policies and 
procedures to ensure the Regional Centers’ compliance with all current statutes. The directive also 
requires Regional Centers to inform their staff of the updates to policies and procedures. DDS noted to the 
Bureau of State Audits that its review of Regional Centers’ purchase of service policies for compliance 
with law is an ongoing process which includes ensuring that Regional Centers are implementing the least 
costly provision contained in current statutes. 

Harbor Regional Center 

HRC was incorporated on May 3, 1977 as a California nonprofit corporation for the purpose of 
operating the Harbor Regional Center.  HRC was organized to provide diagnostic evaluations, client 
service coordination and lifelong planning services for persons with developmental disabilities and their 
families.  HRC provides services to approximately 12,000 consumers.  HRC’s service area includes over 
20 cities covering more than 125 square miles of the southwestern quadrant of the County. HRC’s 
contract with DDS has been continually renewed since HRC’s founding in 1977. 

HRC’s caseload and budget have grown as the population of its service area has grown over the 
past 38 years.  See APPENDIX A – “CERTAIN INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DEL HARBOR 
FOUNDATION AND THE HARBOR REGIONAL CENTER.” The source of repayment for the Bonds 
will be primarily from funds received by HRC pursuant to its contract with DDS, which amounts will be 
paid by HRC to the Corporation as rent under the Office Lease in connection with the Facilities.  

Under HRC’s contract with DDS, the State may take corrective action against HRC based on its 
failure to perform under the contract.  HRC’s current contract with DDS provides that “[i]f it is found that 
[HRC] does not meet or is at risk of not meeting performance standards, due to the failure to meet 
performance objectives or requirements under the Lanterman Act or the terms of the contract, the State 
may take any or all of the following actions independently or in combination: the provision of technical 
assistance; loss of fiscal incentives; mandated consultation with designated representatives of [the 
Association of Regional Center Agencies] or a management team designated by the State, or both; 
issuance of a letter of noncompliance; pursuit of legal or equitable remedies for enforcement of specified 
obligations; or contract termination or contract nonrenewal subject to section 4635 of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code.”  The State may take any other appropriate action under the Lanterman Act.  HRC has 
never had its contract with DDS suspended, terminated or not renewed. 

No assurance can be given, that DDS will not take corrective action in the future, including, 
without limitation, termination of HRC’s contract with DDS.  In such circumstance, HRC’s management 
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believes that HRC’s employees would remain in the Facilities and continue to coordinate services to the 
developmentally disabled and that all payments required to be made under the Office Lease would 
continue to be made under a different management team installed by DDS. 

Pledge of Revenues under the Indenture 

The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable solely from and secured solely by the 
Revenues, the Deed of Trust, the Office Lease (other than Reserved Rights) and all amounts and 
securities in the funds and accounts held by the Trustee (other than the Rebate Fund and any account 
therein) and pledged under the Indenture. “Revenues” means all receipts, payments and other income 
derived by the Authority or the Trustee pursuant to the Loan Agreement (except any payments owed by 
the Corporation to the Authority in connection with its Reserved Rights made pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement), including all Loan Payments and all amounts received by the Corporation under the Office 
Lease constituting Gross Revenues (as defined herein) under the Loan Agreement, or otherwise in respect 
of the financing of the Project as provided in the Loan Agreement, and any income or revenue derived 
from the investment of any money in any fund or account established pursuant to the Indenture (other 
than the Rebate Fund and the Additional Payments Fund and  any account therein). Pursuant to the 
Indenture, the Authority transfers, assigns and sets over to the Trustee all of the Revenues and any and all 
rights and privileges, other than certain reserved rights it has under the Loan Agreement, including, 
without limitation, the right to collect and receive directly all of the Revenues and the right to hold and 
enforce any security interest therein.  See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL 
DOCUMENTS.” 

Monthly Deposits 

The Corporation is obligated to make monthly deposits with the Trustee in the amounts set forth 
in the Loan Agreement such that eight Business Days preceding each Interest Payment Date or Principal 
Installment Date, as applicable, an amount equal to the amount of the interest or principal payable on the 
Bonds on such Interest Payment Date or Principal Installment Date, as applicable, less any amounts then 
on deposit in the Bond Fund available to pay the interest or principal on the Bonds payable on such 
Interest Payment Date or Principal Installment Date, as applicable. Under the Loan Agreement, the 
Corporation has an absolute and unconditional general obligation to pay the Loan Payments to be made 
thereunder, which payments are due in amounts and at the times necessary to pay the principal of and 
interest to the date of maturity or redemption of the Bonds.  Loan Payments are expected to be paid 
primarily from amounts paid by HRC as rent under the Office lease.  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES 
OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS – Office Lease” herein. 

Pledge of Gross Revenues 

Under the Loan Agreement the Corporation agrees that, so long as any of the Bonds are 
Outstanding or any Additional Payments under the Loan Agreement remain unpaid, it will deposit all of 
the Gross Revenues, as soon as practicable upon receipt, with such banking institutions as the Corporation 
shall designate from time to time (the “Depository Banks”) in accounts designated collectively as the 
“Gross Revenue Fund,” and, pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Corporation pledges, and, to the extent 
permitted by law, grants a security interest to the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority, for the benefit of 
the Owners, as and to the extent provided in the Loan Agreement, in the Gross Revenue Fund and all of 
the Gross Revenues to secure the payment of the Loan Payments and any Additional Payments  under the 
Loan Agreement and the performance by the Corporation of its other obligations under the Loan 
Agreement. 

“Gross Revenues” means all revenues, income, receipts and money received in any period by the 
Corporation (other than the proceeds of borrowing and interest earned thereon if and to the extent such 
interest is required to be excluded by the terms of the borrowing), including, but without limiting the 
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generality of the foregoing, (a) gross revenues derived from its operation and possession of and pertaining 
to the Facilities or any other property or facilities owned or held by the Corporation, (b) gifts, grants, 
bequests, donations and contributions to the Corporation, exclusive of any gifts, grants, bequests, 
donations and contributions to the extent specifically restricted by the donor to a particular purpose 
inconsistent with their use for the payment of Loan Payments or Additional Payments under the Loan 
Agreement and, (c) proceeds with respect to, arising from, or relating to the Facilities or any other 
property or facilities owned or held by the Corporation and derived from (i) insurance (including business 
interruption insurance) or condemnation proceeds (except to the extent such proceeds are required by the 
terms of the Loan Agreement or the Indenture to be used for purposes inconsistent with their use for the 
payment of Loan Payments or Additional Payments under the Loan Agreement), (ii) accounts receivable, 
(iii) securities and other investments, (iv) inventory and other tangible and intangible property, (v) 
medical and hospital expense reimbursement programs and agreements, and (vi) contract rights, accounts, 
instruments, claims for the payment of moneys and other rights and assets now or hereafter owned, held 
or possessed by or on behalf of the Corporation; provided, however, that Gross Revenues shall not 
include any funds received by the Corporation pursuant to vendor contracts to be used by the Corporation 
for the coordination of services to the developmentally disabled; provided further, however, that Gross 
Revenues shall not include any payments received by the Corporation in connection with homes for the 
developmentally disabled administered by the Corporation to the extent that such payments are required 
to pay costs, mortgage payments or contractual services with respect to such homes. 

Amounts in the Gross Revenue Fund may be used and withdrawn by the Corporation at any time 
for any lawful purpose, except as provided in the Loan Agreement.  If the Corporation is delinquent for 
more than three (3) Business Days in the payment or required prepayment of any Loan Payment, or in the 
payment of monthly deposits required under the Loan Agreement, the Authority or the Trustee shall 
notify the Corporation and the Depository Bank(s) of such delinquency, and, unless such Loan Payments 
or other payment is made within five (5) Business Days after receipt by the Corporation of such notice, 
the Corporation shall cause the Depository Bank(s) to transfer the Gross Revenue Fund to the name and 
credit of the Trustee, as assignee of the Corporation.  The Gross Revenue Fund shall remain in the name 
and to the credit of the Trustee until the amounts on deposit in the Gross Revenue Fund are sufficient to 
pay in full (or have been used to pay in full) all Loan Payments in default and payments required and until 
all other Events of Default known to the Trustee shall have been made good or cured to the satisfaction of 
the Trustee or provision deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall have been made therefore, 
whereupon the Gross Revenue Fund (except Gross Revenues required to make such payments or cure 
such defaults) shall be returned to the name and credit of the Corporation.  During any period that the 
Gross Revenue Fund is held in the name and to the credit of the Trustee, the Trustee shall use and 
withdraw from time to time amounts in the Gross Revenue Fund, making such withdrawals first from 
amounts in the Gross Revenue Fund, to make Loan Payments, Additional Payments under the Loan 
Agreement, and other payments required of the Corporation under the Loan Agreement or with respect to 
any Parity Debt, as such payments become due (whether by maturity, redemption, acceleration or 
otherwise), and, if such amounts shall not be sufficient to pay in full all such payments due on any date, 
then to the payment of Loan Payments and Parity Debt according to the amounts due for Loan Payments 
and Parity Debt, and to such other payments in the order which the Trustee, in its discretion, shall 
determine to be in the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds, without discrimination or preference. 
During any period that the Gross Revenue Fund is held in the name and to the credit of the Trustee, the 
Corporation shall continue to deposit all Gross Revenues in the Gross Revenue Fund and shall not be 
entitled to use or withdraw any of the Gross Revenues unless (and then only to the extent that) the Trustee 
in its sole discretion so directs for the payment of current or past due operating expenses of the 
Corporation; provided, however, that the Corporation shall be entitled to use or withdraw any amounts in 
the Gross Revenue Fund which do not constitute Gross Revenues. 
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Rates and Charges and Debt Service Coverage Under Loan Agreement 

The Corporation covenants and agrees to fix, charge and collect, or cause to be fixed, charged and 
collected, subject to applicable requirements or restrictions imposed by law, such rent, fees and charges 
for the use of the Facilities which, together with all other receipts and revenues of the Corporation and 
any other funds available therefor, will be sufficient in each Fiscal Year to produce Net Income Available 
for Debt Service equal to at least 1.25 times Aggregate Debt Service for such Fiscal Year with respect to 
the Bonds. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS – Loan 
Agreement.” 

Office Lease 

The Corporation entered into the Office Lease with HRC for the Facilities On December 1, 2009.  
The Office Lease will be amended pursuant to Amendment No. 1 to Office Lease.  The term of the Office 
Lease exceeds the final maturity of the Bonds. Rent under the Office Lease is the primary source of 
Gross Revenues under the Loan Agreement and therefore the primary source of Revenues under 
the Indenture to secure the repayment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  During the 
Corporation’s fiscal year 2015-16, the total annual amount payable under the Office Lease is expected to 
be $2,915,212 (consisting of base rent of approximately $2,186,197 and operating expenses payable 
under the Lease of approximately $729,015).  The base rent escalates each fiscal year during the term of 
the Office Lease. See “INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS” herein. 

Deed of Trust 

To secure its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture, the Corporation will 
execute and deliver the Deed of Trust, encumbering the Facilities. See “INVESTMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS – Limitations Relating to the Deed of Trust” herein. 

Debt Service Reserve Fund 

The Indenture requires the establishment of the Debt Service Reserve Fund in an amount equal to 
the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, which will be $2,131,600.00 on the date of issuance of the Bonds.  
“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Debt Service Reserve Fund and as of any 
date of calculation, an amount equal to the least of (a) ten percent (10%) of the initial offering price to the 
public of the Bonds issued under the Indenture and as determined under the Code, or (b) the greatest 
amount of the Bond Debt Service for the Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture in 
any Fiscal Year during the period commencing with the Fiscal Year in which the determination is being 
made and terminating with the last Fiscal Year in which any Bond and any Additional Bonds issued under 
the Indenture is due, or (c) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the sum of the Bond Debt Service 
for the Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture for all Fiscal Years during the period 
commencing with the Fiscal Year in which such calculation is made (or if appropriate, the first full Fiscal 
Year following the issuance of the Bonds) and terminating with the last Fiscal Year in which any Bond 
Debt Service for the Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture is due, divided by the 
number of such Fiscal Years, all as computed and determined by the Corporation and specified in writing 
to the Trustee.  If, on any date on which the principal or redemption price of, or interest on, any of the 
Bonds and any Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture is due, the amount in the Bond Fund 
available for such payment is less than the amount of the principal and redemption price of and interest on 
the Bonds due on such date, the Trustee is required to apply amounts from the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
to the extent necessary to make good the deficiency. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL 
LEGAL DOCUMENTS – Indenture.”  
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Insurance 

The Corporation currently maintains insurance with commercial insurers for maximum policy 
amounts of up to $14,249,043 for property coverage, $6,008,500 for business income and extra expense, 
up to $1,000,000 per occurrence with an aggregate limit of $2,000,000 for general liability coverage.  In 
addition a $3,000,000 umbrella policy and a $10,000,000 earthquake policy are maintained.  The 
deductible in connection with the earthquake coverage is $50,000. HRC currently maintains insurance 
with commercial insurers for up to $3,000,000 per occurrence with an aggregate limit of $5,000,000 for 
professional liability coverage.  

The Corporation is obligated to procure or cause to be procured and maintain or cause to be 
maintained through the term of the loan under the Loan Agreement, insurance for the Facilities against 
loss or damage to the Facilities or such structure or item of furniture or equipment caused by fire or 
lightning, with an extended coverage endorsement and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance, 
which such extended coverage insurance will, as nearly as practicable, cover loss or damage by 
earthquake, explosion, windstorm, riot, aircraft, vehicle damage, smoke and such other hazards as are 
normally covered by such insurance; provided, that earthquake coverage will be required only if available 
from reputable insurers at commercially reasonable rates, as determined by an Insurance Consultant.  

In addition, the Corporation is required to maintain or cause to be maintained rental interruption 
or loss of use insurance for the Facilities in an amount not less than the maximum remaining scheduled 
Loan Payments in any twenty-four (24) month period, to insure against loss of use of the Facilities caused 
by perils covered by the insurance required in the Loan Agreement. The insurance required by the Loan 
Agreement shall be in an amount equal to the lesser of the replacement cost (without deduction for 
depreciation) of the Facilities or the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds (except that such 
insurance may be subject to deductible clauses of not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the amount of any 
one loss).  The Corporation is required to maintain flood insurance on the Facilities and the furniture, 
equipment and other contents therein at such levels as shall be determined adequate by the Insurance 
Consultant in its sole discretion. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL 
DOCUMENTS – Loan Agreement.”  There can be no assurance that such insurance will cover all losses 
or that uninsured or underinsured losses will not have a material adverse impact on the Corporation and 
its operations. 

Limited Obligation of Authority 

NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, ANY AUTHORITY MEMBER OR ANY PERSON 
EXECUTING THE BONDS IS LIABLE PERSONALLY ON THE BONDS OR SUBJECT TO ANY 
PERSONAL LIABILITY OR ACCOUNTABILITY BY REASON OF THEIR ISSUANCE.  THE 
BONDS ARE LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY, PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND 
SECURED BY THE PLEDGE OF REVENUES UNDER THE INDENTURE. NEITHER THE 
AUTHORITY, ITS MEMBERS, THE STATE, NOR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS 
SHALL BE DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, CONTINGENTLY OR MORALLY OBLIGATED TO USE 
ANY OTHER MONEYS OR ASSETS TO PAY ALL OR ANY PORTION OF THE DEBT SERVICE 
DUE ON THE BONDS, TO LEVY OR TO PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION WHATSOEVER 
THEREFOR OR TO MAKE ANY APPROPRIATION FOR THEIR PAYMENT. THE BONDS ARE 
NOT A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE AUTHORITY, ITS MEMBERS, THE 
STATE OR ANY OF ITS POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS NOR DO THEY CONSTITUTE 
INDEBTEDNESS WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY DEBT 
LIMITATION.  THE AUTHORITY HAS NO TAXING POWER. 
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Limitation on Encumbrances 

Under the Loan Agreement, the Corporation covenants and agrees that it will not incur, create, 
assume or permit to exist any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, security interest, encumbrance, lien or 
charge of any kind (a “security interest”) upon the Revenues or the Facilities whether now owned or 
hereafter acquired except for Permitted Encumbrances. See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF 
PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS.” 

Limitations on Indebtedness 

In the Loan Agreement, the Corporation covenants and agrees that it will not incur any 
indebtedness or financial obligations by borrowing money, by assuming or guaranteeing the obligations 
of others, by entering into installment purchase contracts or leases required to be capitalized in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, or otherwise (other than indebtedness, not for 
borrowed money, incurred in the ordinary course of business); provided, however, that the Corporation 
may incur: 

(i) Funded Debt incurred for the purpose of refinancing or refunding outstanding 
indebtedness, which may be Parity Debt if incurred for the purpose of refinancing or 
refunding outstanding Parity Debt, provided that the Board of Directors determines that 
such refinancing or refunding is in the best interests of the Corporation; 

(ii) Debt subordinated to Parity Debt, provided that the instrument pursuant to which such 
debt is incurred contains no provision that would permit the obligee under such 
instrument to cause an event of default to occur in connection with any Funded Debt; and 

(iii) Non-Recourse Indebtedness arising either in connection with the Corporation’s financing 
of real or personal property not theretofore owned by the Corporation, or in connection 
with the refinancing of Non-Recourse Indebtedness, whether, in either case, such 
indebtedness be to the sellers of such property or to banks or other lenders and whether, 
in either case, such indebtedness be unsecured or secured by liens on the property 
financed. 

Additional Bonds 

The Authority may at any time issue Additional Bonds under the Indenture payable from and 
secured by a pledge of the Revenues under the Indenture on a parity with the Bonds upon the satisfaction 
of certain conditions set forth therein.  See APPENDIX C – “SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL 
DOCUMENTS.” 

STATE BUDGET 

Information about the State budget is regularly available at various State-maintained websites.  
Text of proposed and adopted budgets may be found at the website of the Department of Finance, 
www.dof.ca.gov, under the heading “California Budget.”  An impartial analysis of the budget is posted 
by the Office of the Legislative Analyst (the “LAO”) at www.lao.ca.gov.  In addition, various State 
official statements, many of which contain a summary of the current and past State budgets and the 
impact of those budgets on cities in the State, may be found at the website of the State Treasurer, 
www.treasurer.ca.gov. The information referred to is prepared by the respective State agency 
maintaining each website and not by the Corporation or the Authority, and the Corporation and the 
Authority can take no responsibility for the continued accuracy of these internet addresses or for the 
accuracy, completeness or timeliness of information posted there, and such information is not 
incorporated herein by these references. 
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2015-16 State Budget.  On June 24, 2015, Governor Brown signed the Fiscal Year 2015-16 State 
Budget (the “2015-16 Budget”) which expands child care, boosts funding for public schools and opens 
the State's public healthcare program to immigrant children who are in the country illegally.  The new 
spending plan, which includes a $115.4-billion general fund, takes effect July 1 and provides for an 
estimated 170,000 immigrants 18 and younger to qualify for Medi-Cal. In addition, Governor Brown 
called special legislative sessions to find sustainable funding for transportation and public healthcare. 

Significant adjustments set forth in the 2015-16 Budget affecting DDS include the following: 

• $5.9 billion total funds to DDS for Fiscal Year 2015-16, a net increase of $456.7 million 
above the updated Fiscal Year 2014-15 expenditure, an 8.3 percent increase; 

• $20.3 billion ($7.2 billion general fund) for DDS, an increase of $244.7 million from the 
revised 2014-15 budget; 

• Community Care Licensing - $3 million general fund and 28.5 positions to address a 
backlog of complaint cases and expand training and technical assistance; and 

• Interagency Child Abuse and Neglect - $4 million to support an optional grant program 
for counties to report instances of suspected child abuse or neglect to local law 
enforcement agencies. 

Proposition 30. On November 6, 2012, California voters approved Proposition 30, which 
increases personal income taxes on high-income taxpayers for seven years and sales taxes for four years. 
The new tax revenues would be available to fund programs in the State budget, including DDS contracts 
with Regional Centers. The approval of Proposition 30 averted a $50 million mid-year cut to the DDS 
budget for fiscal year 2012-13. 

Future State Budgets 

No prediction can be made by the Corporation as to whether the State will encounter budgetary 
problems in future fiscal years, and if it were to do so, it is not clear what measures would be taken by the 
State to balance its budget, as required by law.  In addition, the Corporation cannot predict the final 
outcome of future State budget negotiations, the impact that such budgets will have on Corporation or 
HRC finances and operations or what actions will be taken in the future by the State Legislature and the 
Governor to deal with changing State revenues and expenditures.  There can be no assurance that actions 
taken by the State to address its financial condition will not materially adversely affect the financial 
condition of the Corporation or HRC.  Current and future State budgets will be affected by national and 
State economic conditions and other factors, including the current economic downturn, over which the 
Corporation, the Authority or HRC have no control. 
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS 

Investment in the Bonds involves substantial risks. The following information should be 
considered by prospective investors in evaluating an investment in the Bonds. However, the following 
does not purport to be an exclusive listing of risks and other considerations which may be relevant to 
investing in the Bonds, and the order in which the following information is presented is not intended to 
reflect the relative importance of such risks. 

Limited Source for Repayment 

The Corporation’s primary source of revenues to pay debt service on the Bonds will be the rental 
payments it receives from HRC under the Office Lease.  If HRC were to default in paying rent under the 
Office Lease there likely would be insufficient moneys available to pay the Owners of the Bonds. The 
Corporation is presently dependent on HRC for substantially all of the Corporation’s Gross Revenues.  
The Corporation’s Gross Revenues will be derived almost entirely from amounts paid by the State 
pursuant to various contracts between HRC and the State, and, in particular, the contract with DDS that 
funds HRC’s operations and the purchase of services budget. See APPENDIX A - “CERTAIN 
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE DEL HARBOR FOUNDATION AND THE HARBOR 
REGIONAL CENTER.”   

The amounts paid by DDS to HRC vary from year to year, and there can be no assurance that the 
State will continue to renew the DDS contract with HRC at current levels for the services it coordinates to 
the developmentally disabled.  If the State fails to renew the DDS contract with HRC, the ability of HRC 
to pay the rent required under the Office Lease and thus the ability of the Corporation to pay debt service 
on the Bonds would be adversely affected.   

State Budget and Funding 

The primary source of Gross Revenues and thus repayment for the Bonds is rent received by the 
Corporation under the Office Lease.  HRC makes rent payments under the Office Lease from moneys 
received from the State pursuant to HRC’s contract with DDS under the Lanterman Act.  Funding for the 
Regional Centers is subject to annual appropriation by the State Legislature.  During the previous 
economic recession, the State experienced severe financial and economic restraints. 

For fiscal years 2012-13 and 2013-14, DDS maintained its allocation for rent payable by HRC 
(and other Regional Centers) to the approximate funding level of fiscal year 2010-11. DDS has informed 
the Regional Centers that this funding level will be maintained during fiscal year 2014-15. No assurance 
can be made regarding DDS’s calculations of rent allocation for subsequent fiscal years. To the extent the 
rent allocation under the DDS contract is less than the rent payable by HRC under the Office Lease for 
the Facilities (which rent is subject to an annual escalation pursuant to the Office Lease), HRC has used 
and will use other operations funds provided for under the DDS contract or other available funds to 
satisfy its rent obligations. Use of other funds has reduced and will reduce funds available to HRC for 
staffing and other operational purposes. The use of operations funds in addition to those funds specifically 
allocated to rent payments has not materially adversely affected HRC’s operations or financial condition.  
Inability of HRC to make rent payments under the Office Lease in a timely manner may result in an 
inability of the Corporation to meet its payment obligations under the Loan Agreement, which may in 
turn have a material adverse effect on the timely payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Future State actions taken to address budgetary difficulties could have the effect of reducing or 
delaying funding to DDS and the Regional Centers.  There can be no assurance that such difficulties will 
not have a material adverse effect on HRC’s ability to pay when due rent payments under the Lease. 
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The Corporation and HRC are unable to predict the nature, extent or effect of any future 
reductions, or the impact that any such reductions may have on HRC’s finances and operations.  Neither 
DDS nor any other State agency is a party to the Office Lease and there can be no guarantee that 
the State will fund the Regional Centers, including HRC, through the term of the Office Lease in 
amounts sufficient for HRC to make the required payments to the Corporation thereunder. See 
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS – Lanterman Act; Department of 
Developmental Services; State Budget” herein. 

Information regarding the State budget is regularly available at various State-maintained 
websites, including the website of the Department of Finance, www.dof.ca.gov, under the heading 
“California Budget.”  Additionally, an impartial analysis of the State’s Budgets is posted by the 
Legislative Analyst’s Office (the “LAO”) at www.lao.ca.gov.  The Corporation and HRC take no 
responsibility for the continued accuracy of these internet addresses or for the accuracy, completeness or 
timeliness of information posted on such websites, and such information is not incorporated herein by 
reference. 

Tax-Exempt Status 

Maintenance of Tax-Exempt Status.  The tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds depends 
upon the maintenance by each of the Corporation and HRC of its respective status as an organization 
described in section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  The maintenance of such status is contingent on compliance 
with general rules promulgated in the Code and related regulations regarding the organization and 
operation of tax-exempt entities, including its operation for charitable purposes and its avoidance of 
transactions which may cause its assets to inure to the benefit of private individuals. 

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has reorganized activities relating to tax-exempt 
bonds with the stated aim of increasing the level of audit coverage.  Historically, the only penalty 
available to the Service in the event of a failure to fully comply with section 501(c)(3) of the Code is the 
revocation of tax-exempt status. Legislation has been enacted, however, which imposes an excise tax as 
an intermediate sanction against tax-exempt organizations which engage in “excess benefit transactions.”  
Excess benefit transactions generally are transactions in which an improper economic benefit is conferred 
upon certain persons.  It is expected that such legislation will make it less likely that the Service will 
revoke the 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status of nonprofit corporations.  The loss of tax-exempt status by the 
Corporation or HRC could result in loss of tax exemption with respect to interest on the Bonds and 
defaults in covenants with respect to the Bonds would likely be triggered. Such an event could also have 
material adverse consequences on the financial condition of the Corporation and HRC. 

State Income Tax Exemption.  The loss by either the Corporation or HRC of the exclusion of 
interest from gross income for federal tax purposes might trigger a challenge to their State income and 
property tax exemptions.  Depending on the circumstances, such an event could be adverse and material. 
The Corporation and HRC believe that the Facilities will be exempt from California real property 
taxation. 

Bankruptcy Risks 

The rights and remedies of the Owners of the Bonds are subject to various provisions of the 
federal Bankruptcy Code. If the Corporation or HRC was to become a debtor in a bankruptcy case, its 
revenues and certain of its accounts receivable and other property created or otherwise acquired alter the 
filing of such petition and for up to 90 days prior to the filing of such petition may not be subject to the 
security interest created under the Indenture for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds.  The filing would 
operate as an automatic stay of the commencement or continuation of any judicial or other proceeding 
against the Corporation or HRC and their respective properties, and as an automatic stay of any act or 
proceeding to enforce a lien upon or to otherwise exercise control over their respective properties.  If the 
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bankruptcy court so ordered, the property of the Corporation or HRC, including accounts receivable and 
proceeds thereof, could be used for the financial rehabilitation of the Corporation or HRC despite the 
security interest of the Trustee therein.  While the Bankruptcy Code requires that the interest of the 
Trustee as lien owner be adequately protected before the collateral may be used by the Corporation or 
HRC, such protection could take the form of a replacement lien on assets of the Corporation or HRC 
acquired or created after the bankruptcy petition is instituted.  The rights of the Trustee to enforce liens 
and security interests against the assets of the Corporation or HRC could be delayed during the pendency 
of the rehabilitation proceedings. 

The Corporation or HRC could file a plan for the reorganization of its debts in any such 
proceeding which could include provisions modifying or altering the rights of creditors generally, or any 
class of them, secured or unsecured. The plan, if confirmed by a court, binds all creditors who had notice 
or knowledge of the plan and discharges all claims against the debtor provided for in the plan. No plan 
may be confirmed unless certain conditions are met, among which are that the plan is in the best interests 
of creditors, is feasible and has been accepted by each class of claims impaired thereunder. Each class of 
claims has accepted the plan if at least two-thirds in dollar amount and more than one-half in number of 
the class cast votes in its favor. Even if the plan is not so accepted, it may be confirmed if the court finds 
that the plan is fair and equitable with respect to each class of non-accepting creditors impaired 
thereunder and does not discriminate unfairly.  

Hazardous Substances   

While governmental taxes, assessments and charges are common claims against the value of 
property, other less common claims may be relevant. One of the most serious in terms of the potential 
reduction in the value that may be realized is a claim with regard to hazardous substances. In general, the 
Corporation may be required by law to remedy conditions of the Facilities relating to release of hazardous 
substances. The federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 
1980, sometimes referred to as “CERCLA” or the “Superfund Act,” is the most well-known and widely 
applicable of these laws. California laws with regard to hazardous substances are stringent and similar to 
certain federal acts. Under many of these laws, the owner (or operator) is obligated to remedy a hazardous 
substance condition of property whether or not the owner (or operator) had or has anything to do with the 
creation or handling of the hazardous substance. Further, such liabilities may arise not simply from the 
existence of a hazardous substance but from the method of handling the hazardous substance. If any 
portion of the Facilities is affected by a hazardous substance, the marketability of the Facilities could be 
impacted and the value of the Facilities could be reduced by the cost of remedying the condition. Any of 
these potentialities described in this paragraph could significantly affect the value of the Facilities that 
would be realized upon a default and foreclosure.  In addition, during any period when remediation is 
occurring, all or a portion of the Facilities may not be able to be occupied. In such circumstance, HRC 
would be entitled to abatement of all or a portion of its obligation to pay rent under the Office Lease.  Any 
business interruption insurance obtained in connection with the lease of the Facilities may not be 
sufficient to pay all rent due during such period of abatement.  

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment.  In connection with the issuance of the Prior Bonds in 
2009, ENVIRON International Corporation (“Environ”) prepared a Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment, dated November 2009 (the “Phase I”).  The descriptions of the Phase I herein have not been 
approved by Environ.  The Del Amo Facility Superfund covers an area of approximately 280 acres and is 
located in western Los Angeles County, between the cities of Torrance and Carson (the “Del Amo 
Facility Superfund site”).  According to the Phase I, the Del Amo Facility Superfund site is located 
approximately 4.8 miles to the east-northeast and potentially down- to cross-gradient of the site on which 
the Facilities are located.  Based on Environs’s review of the most recent information available from the 
United States Environmental Protection Agency (“USEPA”) Superfund website, an interview with certain 
personnel knowledgeable about the current status of the Del Amo Facility Superfund site and the distance 
to the Del Amo Facility Superfund site, Environ stated in Phase I that soil issues from the Del Amo 
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Facility Superfund site were not a concern for the site on which the Facilities are located.  Groundwater 
remediation for the Del Amo Facility Superfund site and an adjoining Superfund site (which has been 
combined as a dual site operation) were in the design phase and separate remedies had been selected by 
the USEPA to manage the chlorobenzene and benzene plumes associated with such sites.  The extent of 
the groundwater plume was not completely defined; however, most of the groundwater investigation 
focused on the immediate vicinity of the two Superfund sites and the areas directly to the south of the 
Superfund sites.  Based on the distance to the Del Amo Facility Superfund site from the site on which the 
Facilities are located (approximately 4.8 miles) and the groundwater flow direction, it was unlikely, 
according to the Phase I, that groundwater from the Del Amo Facility Superfund site had impacted the 
site on which the Facilities are located. 

Historical Use as Oil Production Site.  The Phase I noted that beginning in the 1920s, consistent 
with land use in much of the Torrance area, oil production facilities were developed at the site of the 
Facilities and in the surrounding area.  Four oil wells were located within the Village Del Amo property, 
immediately adjacent to the site where the Facilities are located, along with several ponds and above 
ground storage tanks that were located on the Facilities site itself.  Oil production continued in the 
immediate vicinity of the site until the 1970s.  The four offsite wells were plugged between 1940 and 
1989.  Other oil production equipment was removed by the mid-1970s.  A limited site investigation at the 
Village Del Amo property conducted by Dames & Moore, a consulting, engineering and construction 
management firm, in April 1999 identified the presence in some of the borings of low level diesel- and 
oil- range petroleum hydrocarbons in the upper 20 feet of soil in the areas investigated.  Redevelopment 
of the Village Del Amo property to its current configuration as a retail and business park occurred in 
1982.  During redevelopment of the site, it is likely that superficial features related to former oil field use 
(e.g., sumps, tanks, impacted soil, etc.) would have been removed. Due in part to the majority of the 
Facilities site being currently covered by buildings, paved streets, and hardscaped areas, with a minimal 
amount of landscaping, and that this use is expected to continue for the next 30 years, Environ stated in 
the Phase 1 that contact by site users with any deeper soil impacted by hydrocarbons from historical uses 
that may remain at the site where the Facilities are located was unlikely. 

Groundwater, which is estimated to be present at approximately 70 to 80 feet below ground 
surface according to Dames & Moore’s work, was not investigated as part of Dames & Moore’s 1999 
subsurface investigation at the site.  While impact to groundwater from historical oil production at the site 
(which ceased almost four decades ago) cannot be ruled out based on the information reviewed as of the 
Date of Phase I by Environ, Environ had no information to suggest that there had been a significant 
release at the site where the Facilities are located that would have impacted the groundwater under the 
site.  In the Phase I, Environ stated that it had no information regarding the potential for methane gas or 
hydrogen sulfide to occur at the site and this issue cannot be ruled out without testing. Environ noted in 
the Phase I that the buildings at the site had been present since 1982 and that, based on the information 
reviewed for the Phase I and interviews conducted with facility personnel, Environ had no information to 
indicate that methane is an issue at the Facilities site.  The surrounding former oil field production 
properties have likewise been developed with multiple uses and no indications of methane issues were 
identified based on documents reviewed as part of Environ’s work for the Phase I.  

Subsequent to completion of the Phase I, Environ conducted air sampling at the 
Facilities.  Methane and hydrogen sulfide were not detected.  Some compounds related to former oil field 
use were detected, but at concentrations that are below the applicable human health or environmental 
screening levels or at levels consistent with background concentrations for the area.  One compound 
associated with former oil field use and two compounds not associated with former oil field use were 
detected above screening levels, but at concentrations within the standard agency risk range and less than 
the no significant risk level. The Phase I is not being updated in connection with the issuance of the 
Bonds. 
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Limitations on Remedies 

The ability of the Trustee to enforce the agreements set forth in the Indenture, the Deed of Trust, 
and the Loan Agreement will depend upon the exercise of various remedies specified by such documents 
which may in many instances require judicial actions that are often subject to discretion and delay or that 
otherwise may not be readily available or be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivered 
concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal 
instruments by limitations imposed by State and federal laws, rulings and decisions affecting remedies, 
and by bankruptcy, reorganization or other laws of general application affecting the enforcement of 
creditors’ rights. 

Seismic Activity 

Generally, throughout the State, some level of seismic activity occurs on a regular basis.  
Periodically, the magnitude of a single seismic event can cause significant ground shaking, destabilization 
or liquefaction of the soils, and potential for damage to property located at or near the center of such 
seismic activity.  The Corporation maintains general liability insurance covering a variety of hazards, 
including a $10,000,000 earthquake policy.  Nevertheless, if seismic activity causes significant damage to 
the Facilities, the value thereof could be adversely affected and hence the security for the Bonds could be 
impaired.  

Limitations Relating to the Deed of Trust 

The security afforded by the Deed of Trust is limited.  There can be no assurance that the lien of 
the Deed of Trust could be foreclosed or otherwise realized upon at a time or in an amount sufficient to 
make full and timely payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

Foreclosure.  There are two methods of foreclosing on a deed of trust under State law, by 
nonjudicial sale and by judicial sale. Foreclosure under a deed of trust may be accomplished by a 
nonjudicial trustee’s sale under the power of sale provision in the deed of trust. Prior to such sale, the 
trustee must record a notice of default and election to sell and send a copy to the trustor, to any person 
who has recorded a request for a copy of the notice of default and notice of sale, to any successor in 
interest of the trustor and to certain other parties discernable from the real property records. The trustee 
then must wait for the lapse of at least three months after the recording of the notice of default and 
election to sell before establishing the trustee’s proposed sale date and giving a notice of sale (in a form 
mandated by State statutes). The notice of sale must be posted in a public place and published once a 
week for three consecutive calendar weeks, with the first such publication preceding the trustee’s sale by 
at least 20 days. Such notice of sale must be posted on the property and sent, at least 20 days prior to the 
trustee’s sale, to the trustor, to each person who has requested a copy, to any successor in interest of the 
trustor, to the beneficiary of any junior deed of trust and to certain other parties discernable from the real 
property records. In addition, the notice of sale must be recorded with the county recorder at least 14 days 
prior to the date of sale. The trustor, any successor in interest of the trustor in the trust property, or any 
person having a junior lien or encumbrance of record may, during the statutory reinstatement period, cure 
any monetary default by paying the entire amount of the debt then due under the terms of the deed of trust 
and the obligations secured thereby (exclusive of principal due by virtue of acceleration upon default) 
plus costs and expenses actually incurred in enforcing the obligation and certain statutorily limited 
attorneys’ and trustee’s fees. Following a nonjudicial sale, neither the trustor nor any junior lien holder 
has any right of redemption, and the beneficiary may not ordinarily obtain a deficiency judgment against 
the trustor.   
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Should foreclosure under a deed of trust be sought in the form of a judicial foreclosure, it is 
generally subject to most of the delays and expenses of other lawsuits, and sometimes requires up to 
several years to complete. The primary advantage of a judicial foreclosure is that the beneficiary is 
entitled, subject to other limitations, to obtain a deficiency judgment against the trustor to the extent that 
the amount of the debt is in excess of the fair market value of the property. Following a judicial 
foreclosure sale, the trustor or its successors in interest may redeem the property for a period of one year 
(or a period of only three months if the proceeds of sale are sufficient to satisfy the debt, plus interest and 
costs). In addition, to assure collection of any rents assigned as additional collateral under the Deed of 
Trust, the Trustee would likely need to seek the appointment by a court of a receiver for the Facilities. 

Antideficiency Legislation and Certain Other Limitations on Lenders. California has four 
principal statutory prohibitions limiting the remedies of a beneficiary under a deed of trust. Two such 
prohibitions limit the beneficiary’s right to obtain a deficiency judgment, one being based on the method 
of foreclosure and the other on the type of debt secured. Under the former, a deficiency judgment is 
ordinarily barred when the foreclosure is accomplished by means of a nonjudicial trustee’s sale, except 
for limited exceptions not applicable to the Deed of Trust. Under the latter, a deficiency judgment is 
barred where a foreclosed deed of trust secures certain purchase money obligations. A State law, 
commonly known as the “one form of action” rule, requires the beneficiary to exhaust the security under a 
deed of trust by foreclosure before bringing a personal action against the trustor on the indebtedness. If a 
court were to hold that this rule were applicable to the Deed of Trust, and the trustee under the Deed of 
Trust or the Owners of the Bonds were to file suit or take other actions (including set off) to collect the 
debt secured by the Deed of Trust without seeking to enforce their remedies under the Deed of Trust, they 
might be precluded from thereafter proceeding under the Deed of Trust. State law also limits any 
deficiency judgment obtained by a beneficiary following a judicial sale to the excess of the outstanding 
debt above the fair market value of the property at the time of sale. This prevents a beneficiary from 
obtaining a large deficiency judgment against the debtor as the result of low bids at a judicial sale. 
Statutory provisions (such as the federal bankruptcy laws) may have the effect of delaying enforcement of 
the lien of the Deed of Trust in the event of a default by the Corporation. 

THE AUTHORITY 

Under Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the California Government Code (the “JPA Act”), certain 
California cities, counties and special districts have entered into a joint exercise of powers agreement (the 
“JPA Agreement”) forming the Authority for the purpose of exercising powers common to the members 
and exercising the additional powers granted to the Authority by the JPA Act and any other applicable 
provisions of California law.  Under the JPA Agreement, the Authority may issue bonds, notes or any 
other evidence of indebtedness, for any purpose or activity permitted under the JPA Act or any other 
applicable law. 

The Authority may sell and deliver obligations other than the Bonds.  These obligations will be 
secured by instruments separate and apart from the Indenture and Loan Agreement, and the holders of 
such other obligations of the Authority will have no claim on the security for the Bonds.  Likewise, the 
Holders of the Bonds will have no claim on the security for such other obligations that may be issued by 
the Authority. 

Neither the Authority nor its independent contractors has furnished, reviewed, investigated or 
verified the information contained in this Official Statement other than the information contained in this 
section and the section entitled “ABSENCE OF LITIGATION - The Authority.” The Authority does not 
and will not in the future monitor the financial condition of the Corporation or HRC or otherwise monitor 
payment of the Bonds or compliance with the documents relating thereto.  Any commitment or obligation 
for continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds, the Corporation or HRC has been undertaken solely 
by the Corporation and HRC. See “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE” herein. 
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TAX MATTERS 

Tax Exemption 

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) imposes certain requirements that must be met 
subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded 
pursuant to section 103(a) of the Code from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax 
purposes.  Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in 
the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance 
of the Bonds.  Each of the Authority and the Corporation has covenanted to maintain the exclusion of the 
interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.   

In the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel, under 
existing statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions, interest on the Bonds is exempt from personal 
income taxes of the State of California and, assuming compliance with the covenants mentioned herein, 
interest on the Bonds is excluded pursuant to section 103(a) of the Code from the gross income of the 
owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing 
statutes, regulations, rulings and court decisions, the Bonds are not “specified private activity bonds” 
within the meaning of section 57(a)(5) of the Code and, therefore, interest on the Bonds will not be 
treated as an item of tax preference for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed by 
section 55 of the Code.  Receipt or accrual of interest on Bonds owned by a corporation may affect the 
computation of the alternative minimum taxable income.  A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable 
income is the basis on which the alternative minimum tax imposed by section 55 of the Code will be 
computed. 

Pursuant to the Indenture and the Loan Agreement, and in the Tax Certificate Pertaining to 
Arbitrage and Certain Other Matters under Sections 103 and 141-150 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, to be delivered by the Authority and the Corporation in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, 
each of the Authority and the Corporation will make representations relevant to the determination of, and 
will make certain covenants regarding or affecting, the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross 
income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.  In reaching its opinions described in the 
immediately preceding paragraph, Bond Counsel will assume the accuracy of such representations and the 
present and future compliance by each of the Authority and the Corporation with its covenants.   

Except as stated in this section above, Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any federal or 
state tax consequences of the receipt of interest on, or the ownership or disposition of, the Bonds.  
Furthermore, Bond Counsel will express no opinion as to any federal, state or local tax law consequences 
with respect to the Bonds, or the interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the Bonds or the 
proceeds thereof predicated or permitted upon the advice or approval of other counsel.  Bond Counsel has 
not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance of the Bonds may 
affect the tax status of interest on the Bonds or the tax consequences of the ownership of the Bonds.   

Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of a result, but represents its legal judgment based 
upon its review of existing statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions and the 
representations and covenants of the Authority and of the Corporation described above.  No ruling has 
been sought from the Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) with respect to the matters addressed in 
the opinion of Bond Counsel, and Bond Counsel’s opinion is not binding on the Service.  The Service has 
an ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt status of the interest on municipal obligations.  If an audit 
of the Bonds is commenced, under current procedures the Service is likely to treat the Authority as the 
“taxpayer,” and the owners would have no right to participate in the audit process.  In responding to or 
defending an audit of the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Bonds, the Authority or the Corporation 
may have different or conflicting interest from the owners.  Public awareness of any future audit of the 
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Bonds could adversely affect the value and liquidity of the Bonds during the pendency of the audit, 
regardless of its ultimate outcome. 

No assurance can be given that future legislation, if enacted into law, will not contain provisions 
that could directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the exemption of interest on the Bonds from personal 
income taxation by the State of California or of the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from the gross 
income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. 

A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel relating to the Bonds is attached hereto 
as Appendix F. 

Tax Accounting Treatment of Bond Premium on Bonds 

To the extent that a purchaser of a Bond acquires that Bond at a price in excess of its “stated 
redemption price at maturity” (within the meaning of section 1273(a)(2) of the Code), such excess will 
constitute “bond premium” under the Code.  Section 171 of the Code, and the Treasury Regulations 
promulgated thereunder, provide generally that bond premium on a tax-exempt obligation must be 
amortized over the remaining term of the obligation (or a shorter period in the case of certain callable 
obligations); the amount of premium so amortized will reduce the owner’s basis in such obligation for 
federal income tax purposes, but such amortized premium will not be deductible for federal income tax 
purposes.  Such reduction in basis will increase the amount of any gain (or decrease the amount of any 
loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or other taxable disposition of the 
obligation.  The amount of premium that is amortizable each year by a purchaser is determined by using 
such purchaser’s yield to maturity.  The rate and timing of the amortization of the bond premium and the 
corresponding basis reduction may result in an owner realizing a taxable gain when its Bond is sold or 
disposed of for an amount equal to or in some circumstances even less than the original cost of the Bond 
to the owner. 

Persons considering the purchase of Bonds with initial bond premium should consult with their 
own tax advisors with respect to the determination of amortizable bond premium on such Bonds for 
federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax consequences of owning and 
disposing of such Bonds. 

Other Tax Consequences 

Although interest on the Bonds may be exempt from California personal income tax and excluded 
from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, an owner’s federal, state or 
local tax liability may be otherwise affected by the ownership or disposition of the Bonds.  The nature and 
extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the owner’s other items of income or deduction.  
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware 
that (i) section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to 
purchase or carry the Bonds and the Code contains additional limitations on interest deductions applicable 
to financial institutions that own tax-exempt obligations (such as the Bonds), (ii) with respect to insurance 
companies subject to the tax imposed by section 831 of the Code, section 832(b)(5)(B)(i) reduces the 
deduction for loss reserves by 15% of the sum of certain items, including interest on the Bonds, (iii) 
interest on the Bonds earned by certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States could be 
subject to a branch profits tax imposed by section 884 of the Code, (iv) passive investment income, 
including interest on the Bonds, may be subject to federal income taxation under section 1375 of the Code 
for Subchapter S corporations that have Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close of the taxable year 
if greater than 25% of the gross receipts of such Subchapter S corporation is passive investment income, 
(v) section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain Railroad Retirement 
benefits to take into account, in determining the taxability of such benefits, receipts or accruals of interest 
on the Bonds and (vi) under section 32(i) of the Code, receipt of investment income, including interest on 
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the Bonds, may disqualify the recipient thereof from obtaining the earned income credit.  Bond Counsel 
will express no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences. 

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

The validity of the Bonds and certain other legal matters are subject to the approving opinion of 
Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Los Angeles, California, Bond Counsel. Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP 
is also serving as Disclosure Counsel. Approval of certain legal matters will be passed upon for the 
Authority by its counsel, Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation, San Francisco, California, for HRC 
by Allen Matkins Leck Gamble Mallory & Natsis LLP, Los Angeles, California, for the Corporation by 
Liner LLP, Los Angeles, California, and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Quint & Thimmig LLP, 
Larkspur, California.  Jones Hall, A Professional Law Corporation undertakes no responsibility for the 
accuracy, completeness or fairness of this Official Statement. 

LITIGATION 

The Authority 

To the knowledge of the Authority, there is no material litigation pending or threatened against 
the Authority concerning the validity of the Bonds or any proceedings of the Authority taken with respect 
to the issuance thereof. 

The Corporation 

There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or, to the Corporation’s best knowledge, 
threatened against the Corporation; (i) seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance or delivery of any of the 
Bonds or the collection of Revenues pledged under the Indenture or the collection of Gross Revenues 
under the Loan Agreement or the payment of Loan Payments; (ii) in any way contesting or adversely 
affecting the authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the validity of the Bonds, the Indenture, the Loan 
Agreement, the Office Lease or the Deed of Trust; (iii) contesting the existence or powers of the 
Corporation; (iv) which, if determined adversely to it, would materially adversely affect the 
consummation of the transactions described in this Official Statement or contemplated by the Indenture, 
the Loan Agreement, the Office Lease or the Deed of Trust or the ability of the Corporation to perform its 
obligations thereunder, as applicable; or (v) contesting the Corporation’s status as an organization 
described in section 501(c)(3) of the Code or which would subject any income of the Corporation to 
federal income taxation to such extent as would result in loss of the exclusion from gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of interest on any of the Bonds under section 103 of the Code.  

In the ordinary course of carrying out its activities, HRC is subject to litigation from time to time.  
The Corporation is not aware of any pending litigation against HRC that would materially and adversely 
impair or delay the payments to be made by HRC to the Corporation under the Office Lease.  

UNDERWRITING 

The Authority and the Corporation have entered into a purchase contract with Westhoff, Cone & 
Holmstedt (the “Underwriter”) pursuant to which the Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain 
conditions, to purchase the Bonds from the Authority at an aggregate price of $32,379,444.45 (being the 
principal amount of the Bonds of $29,845,000, plus an original issue premium of $2,832,894.45, less an 
underwriter’s discount of $298,450.00).  The Underwriter is obligated under the purchase contract to 
purchase all of the Bonds if any are purchased.  The Bonds may be offered and sold by the Underwriter to 
certain dealers and others at yields lower than the public offering yield indicated on the inside cover 
hereof, and such public offering yield may be changed, from time to time, by the Underwriter. 
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Westhoff, Cone & Holmstedt has entered into an agreement with Alamo Capital for retail 
distribution of certain municipal securities offerings, at the original issue prices. Pursuant to said 
agreement, if applicable to the Bonds, Westhoff, Cone & Holmstedt will share a portion of its 
underwriting compensation with respect to the Bonds with Alamo Capital. 

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS 

Grant Thornton LLP will verify the accuracy of (i) mathematical computations concerning the 
adequacy of the maturing principal amounts of and interest earned on the United States Government 
Securities deposited in the 2009 Escrow Fund, together with amounts held as cash therein, to provide for 
payment of the redemption prices (including accrued interest) of the Prior Bonds on the Redemption Date 
and (ii) certain mathematical computations supporting the conclusion that the Bonds are not “arbitrage 
bonds” under the Code, which will be used in part by Bond Counsel to be delivered at the closing of the 
Bonds in concluding that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income of the Owners thereof for 
federal income tax purposes under present laws, including applicable provisions of the Code, existing 
court rulings, regulations and Internal Revenue Service rulings. 

The report of such independent arbitrage consultants will include the statement that the scope of 
their engagement was limited to verifying the mathematical accuracy of the computations contained in 
such schedules provided to them and that they have no obligation to update their report because of events 
occurring, or data or information coming to their attention, subsequent to the date of their report 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is 
material to an evaluation of the offering of the Bonds or to any decision to purchase, hold or sell Bonds 
and the Authority will not provide any such information.  The Authority shall have no liability to the 
Holders of the Bonds or any other person with respect to Rule 15c2-12. 

The Corporation and HRC have undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to 
Owners as described below, and the Authority shall have no liability to the Owners of the Bonds or any 
other person with respect to the Rule. To assist the Underwriter with its obligation to comply with 
applicable provisions of the Rule, the Corporation and HRC will execute the Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement. See APPENDIX E – “FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.” 

In the past five years, HRC and the Corporation failed to timely file financial statements for fiscal 
years 2010-11 and 2013-14, respectively. Certain annual reports for Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2013-
14 did not include all content required by the applicable disclosure undertaking. The Corporation and 
HRC have since filed such financial statements and have filed supplemental annual reports to correct the 
applicable omissions. In connection with the annual reports described above, within the past five years, 
the Corporation and HRC did not file a notice of failure to provide annual financial information on or 
before the date specified in their prior continuing disclosure undertaking. Additionally, the Corporation 
and HRC failed to file a notice of rating upgrade in connection with the Prior Bonds.  Except as described 
in this paragraph, during the past five years, the Corporation and HRC have never failed to comply in all 
material respects with any previous undertaking with respect to the Rule to provide annual reports or 
notices of listed events.  
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RATING 

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) has assigned the Bonds a rating of “A3.”  Such 
rating reflects only the view of Moody’s and any explanation of the significance of such rating should be 
obtained from Moody’s at the following address: Moody’s Investors Service, 7 World Trade Center, 250 
Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10007.  There is no assurance that such rating will continue for 
any given period of time or that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Moody’s, if in 
the judgment of Moody’s circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of the 
rating may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Included as APPENDIX B to this Official Statement are the audited financial statements of the 
Corporation for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2014 and the financial statements of HRC for the Fiscal 
Year ended June 30, 2014. The financial statements of the Corporation and HRC included as APPENDIX 
B have been audited by Windes, Inc., certified public accountants and consultants (“Windes”). Windes 
was not requested to consent to the inclusion of its reports in APPENDIX B and they have not undertaken 
to update their respective reports or to take any action intended or likely to elicit information concerning 
the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements made in this Official Statement, and no opinion is 
expressed by Windes with respect to any event subsequent to the respective date of its reports. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

All quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Office Lease, the Deed of Trust and of other documents contained 
herein do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to such documents for full and complete 
statements of their provisions. Copies of the foregoing documents may be obtained upon request from the 
Trustee and upon payment of the expenses incurred in connection therewith.  

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion are intended as such and 
not as representations of fact.  This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement 
between the Authority or the Corporation and Owners of any of the Bonds.  Appendices A and B hereto, 
and other portions of this Official Statement, contain certain information with respect to the Corporation 
and HRC. Such information has been furnished by the Corporation and HRC and officers and officials of 
the Corporation and HRC, and the Authority makes no representation or warranty whatsoever with 
respect to the information contained in such Appendices or any other information contained in this 
Official Statement, except for information set forth under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and 
“LITIGATION – The Authority” herein. 
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This Official Statement and the execution and delivery thereof have been duly approved and 
authorized by the Corporation and HRC. 

DEL HARBOR FOUNDATION 

 
By:   /s/ John Torii    
  Treasurer 
 
HARBOR DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES 
FOUNDATION 

 

By:   /s/ John Rea    
        President 
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DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE1 –SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies (Continued)  

CertificatesofDeposit

DelHarboraccountsforcertificatesofdepositatfairvalue.  Fairvalueisdefinedasthe
pricethatwouldbereceivedtosellanassetorpaidtotransferaliabilityinanorderly
transactionbetweenmarketparticipantsatthemeasurementdate.   Accountingstandards
haveestablishedafairvaluehierarchythatprioritizestheinputstovaluationtechniques
usedtomeasurefairvalue.  Thehierarchygivesthehighestprioritytounadjustedquoted
pricesinactivemarketsforidenticalassetsorliabilities (Level1measurements) andthe
lowestprioritytomeasurementsinvolvingsignificantunobservableinputs (Level3
measurements).  Thethreelevelsofthefairvaluehierarchyareasfollows:  

Level1inputsarequotedprices (unadjusted) inactivemarketsforidenticalassets
orliabilitiesthatDelHarborhastheabilitytoaccessatthemeasurementdate.  
Level2inputsareinputsotherthanquotedmarketpricesincludedinLevel1that
areobservablefortheassetorliability, eitherdirectlyorindirectly.  
Level3inputsareunobservableinputsfortheassetorliability. 

Certificatesofdepositarefinancialinstrumentsthataremeasuredatfairvalueona
recurringbasisintheaccompanyingstatementsoffinancialposition.  Generally, identical
instrumentstocertificatesofdepositarenottradedinactivemarketsand, assuch, fair
valueisbasedonestimatesusingpresentvalueorothervaluationtechniquessuchas
discountedcashflowsandobservableinputsforsimilarinstruments.  Therefore, the
certificatesofdepositareclassifiedwithinLevel2ofthefairvaluehierarchy.  

AtJune30, 2014and2013, includedinrestrictedcashwas $2,534,401and $2,534,713,  
respectively, incertificatesofdepositwithvariousmaturitydatesrangingfromSeptember
2014toMay2016.  

RestrictedCash

Restrictedcashconsistsofamountsheldintrustaccounts, initiallyfundedfromthe
proceedsprovidedbybondfinancinginconnectionwiththeacquisitionoftheTorrance
officefacilities, forusebyDelHarborinitsperformanceuponcertainobligationsunderits
financingagreements.  Therestrictedcashaccountsarecontrolledandadministeredbya
financialinstitution, astrustee, andarereleaseduponapprovalofformalrequisitionbyDel
Harbor, inaccordancewiththetermsofthefinancingagreements.  
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DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE1 –SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies (Continued)  

DeferredRent

DelHarborprovidesofficefacilitiesunderaleaseagreementthatissubjecttoscheduled
accelerationofrentalincome.  Thescheduledrentincreasesareamortizedevenlyoverthe
lifeofthelease.  Deferredrentrepresentsthedifferencebetweenthecashreceivedandthe
rentalincomerecognizedsinceinceptionofthelease.  

Land, Buildings, andImprovements

Land, buildings, andimprovementsarestatedatcost.  Depreciationiscomputedusingthe
straight-linemethodovertheassets’ estimatedusefullivesofthirtyyearsforbuildingsand
improvementsandfiveyearsforfurnitureandequipment.  

Long-LivedAssets

DelHarborreviewslong-livedassetswhenevereventsorchangesincircumstancesindicate
thatthecarryingamountofanassetmaynotberecoverable.  Iftheestimatedfairvalueis
lessthanthecarryingamountoftheasset, DelHarborrecordsanimpairmentloss.  Ifa
quotedmarketpriceisavailablefortheassetorasimilarasset, itisusedtodetermine
estimatedfairvalue.  Theremainingusefullifeoftheassetisre-evaluatedandtheuseful
lifeisadjustedaccordingly.  Therewerenoimpairmentindicatorsidentified.  

DeferredRevenue

DelHarborreceivedadvancedfundsfromtheRegionalCenterforcapitalexpenditures
associatedwiththebuildingsandfacilityrent. AsofJune30, 2014and2013, DelHarbor
receivedatotalof $1,675,752and $1,540,671incumulativefunding,respectively, of
which $328,952, $294,192, and $815,738wasexpendedforcapitalexpendituresand
buildingimprovementprojectsandrecognizedasincomeinrentalandotherincomeinthe
statementsofactivitiesfortheyearsendedJune30, 2014, 2013, and2012, respectively.  
Theremaining $236,870and $430,741inunusedfundsispresentedasdeferredrevenuefor
futurecapitalimprovementsontheaccompanyingstatementoffinancialpositionasofJune
30, 2014and2013, respectively. Theremaining $233,826indeferredrevenueasofJune
30, 2013representsrentreceivedinadvance.  
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DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE1 –SummaryofSignificantAccountingPolicies (Continued)  

FunctionalAllocationofExpenses

Thecostsofprovidingthevariousprogramsandotheractivitieshavebeensummarizedon
afunctionalbasisinthestatementsofactivities.  Accordingly, certaincostshavebeen
allocatedbasedupontherelativebenefitreceived.  

IncomeTaxes

DelHarborhasreceivedtax-exemptstatusfromtheInternalRevenueServiceand
CaliforniaFranchiseTaxBoardunderSection501(c)(3) oftheInternalRevenueCodeand
Section23701(d) oftheRevenueandTaxationCode, respectively.   

DelHarborrecognizesthefinancialstatementbenefitoftaxpositions, suchasfilingstatus
oftax-exempt, onlyafterdeterminingthattherelevanttaxauthoritywouldmorelikelythan
notsustainthepositionfollowinganaudit.  DelHarborissubjecttopotentialincometax
auditsonopentaxyearsbyanytaxingjurisdictioninwhichitoperates.  Thestatuteof
limitationsforfederalandCaliforniastatepurposesisgenerallythreeandfouryears,  
respectively.     

Reclassifications

Certainamountsintheprior-yearfinancialstatementshavebeenreclassifiedfor
comparativepurposestoconformwiththecurrent-yearfinancialstatementpresentation.  

SubsequentEvents

DelHarbor’smanagementhasevaluatedsubsequenteventsfromthestatementsoffinancial
positiondatethroughNovember25, 2014, thedatethefinancialstatementswereavailable
tobeissuedfortheyearendedJune30, 2014, anddeterminedthattherewerenoother
itemstodisclose.  

11



DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE2 –RestrictedCash

PursuanttothetermsoftheBondagreement, adebtservicereservefundandinterest
accounthavebeenestablished.  (SeeNote4.)  Restrictedcashincludescertificatesof
depositof $2,534,401and $2,534,713,whichhavebeensetasideatJune30, 2014and
2013, respectively.    

Restrictedcashconsistsofthefollowing: 

June30,   
2014 2013

Debtservicereserve $ 2,534,401  $ 2,534,713
Interestaccount140,162 343,396

2,674,563  $ 2,878,109

NOTE3 –Land, Buildings, andImprovements

Land, buildings, andimprovementsconsistsofthefollowing: 

June30,   
2014 2013

Buildingsandimprovements $ 14,891,134  $ 14,759,490
Furnitureandequipment 23,676 23,676
Lessaccumulateddepreciation ( 2,115,066) (  1,616,113)  

12,799,744 13,167,053
Land 7,696,638 7,696,638

20,496,382  $ 20,863,691

12



DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE4 –BondsPayable

InDecember2009, theDelHarborFoundationissued $25,000,000inCaliforniaMunicipal
FinanceAuthoritySeries2009RevenueBondsfortheHarborRegionalCenterProject. The
proceedsreceivedfromthesaleoftheRevenueBondswereusedbyDelHarborto
purchasethemainofficebuildingsandrelatedcapitalimprovements, tofundareservefor
thebonds, andpaycertaincostsrelatedtothebondissuance. Interestonbondsispaid
semi-annually, butnoprincipalpaymentsarerequireduntil2020.  Thebondsaresecured
byadeedoftrustwithassignmentofrentsandfixturefiling.  Bondissuancecostsinthe
amountof $856,628wereincurredandarebeingamortizedoverthelifeoftherelated
bondspayable. TotalaccumulatedamortizationasofJune30, 2014and2013was $130,032
and $101,402, respectively.  

Thebondswillmatureasfollows:  

TermBonds, 8.00%, dueNovember1, 2029  $ 7,920,000
TermBonds, 8.50%, dueNovember1, 2039 17,080,000

25,000,000

Futureamortizationonbondissuancecostsareasfollows:  

YearEnding
June30, 

2015 $ 28,631
2016 28,631
2017 28,631
2018 28,631
2019 28,631
Thereafter 583,441

726,596
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DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE5 –Commitments

Lease – AsLessor

DelHarborleasesofficefacilitiestotheRegionalCenter, describedinNote3, and
recognized $3,705,575and $3,685,556ofrentalincomeandoperatingexpense
reimbursementfromtheRegionalCenterduringtheyearsendedJune30, 2014and2013,  
respectively.  DelHarborreceived $2,805,934and $2,724,204ofrentalincomeand
operatingexpensereimbursementfromtheRegionalCenterduringtheyearsendedJune
30, 2014and2013, respectively, whichdoesnotreflecttheadjustmentfordeferredrent.   
TheleaseagreementexpiresinOctober2039.  

Monthlypaymentsforrentalincomeandoperatingexpensereimbursementarebasedon
termsunderthenoncancelablelease.  Theoperatingexpensereimbursementissubjectto
reviewandadjustmenttoactualcostsincurredbyDelHarbor.  Therehavebeenno
adjustmentsfortheyearsendedJune30, 2014and2013.  

Futureminimumrentalincomeandoperatingexpensereimbursementunderthe
noncancelableoperatingleasedescribedaboveasofJune30, 2014isasfollows:  

Operating
YearEndingRentalExpense

June30, IncomeReimbursementTotal

2015$ 2,182,326 $ 707,781$ 2,890,107
2016 2,247,796 729,015 2,976,811
2017 2,315,229 750,885 3,066,114
2018 2,384,686 773,412 3,158,098
2019 2,456,227 796,614 3,252,841
Thereafter 69,458,469 22,527,072 91,985,541

81,044,733 $ 26,284,779  $ 107,329,512
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DELHARBORFOUNDATION

NOTESTOTHEFINANCIALSTATEMENTS
JUNE30, 2014AND2013

NOTE6 –DonatedServices

DelHarborenteredintoanagreementforin-kindserviceswiththeRegionalCenter.  The
RegionalCenteristoprovidein-kindadministrativeservicestoDelHarborand, inlieu
payment, DelHarborwilldistributefundsthroughgrantawardstofacilitateandaugment
thecoordinationofservicesandprogramsoftheRegionalCenterorwhichbenefitclients
oftheRegionalCenter.  DelHarbor’smanagementhasdeterminedthevalueofthein-kind
administrativeservicestobe $5,478fortheyearendedJune30, 2014, andisincludedin
contributionsandgeneralexpenses.  

NOTE7 – SupplementalDisclosuresofCashFlowInformation

DelHarborpaid $2,085,400ininterestduringbothoftheyearsendedJune30, 2014and
2013.  
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HARBOR DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FOUNDATION, INC. 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
5 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
  Program   Supporting 
  Services   Services  
  Direct        
  Client   General and   Total  
  Services   Administrative   Expenses  
 
Salaries  $ 12,039,154  $ 1,076,822  $ 13,115,976 
Employee health and retirement 
 benefits   2,847,925   254,728   3,102,653 
Payroll taxes   213,112   19,061   232,173 
   Total Salaries and 
    Related Expenses   15,100,191   1,350,611   16,450,802 
Purchase of services: 
  Residential care facilities   46,283,384      46,283,384 
  Day program   12,873,476      12,873,476 
  Other purchased services   68,050,774      68,050,774 
Communication   304,817   27,264   332,081 
General office expenses   366,660   32,795   399,455 
Printing   35,905   3,211   39,116 
Insurance   83,527   40,688   124,215 
General expenses   331,045   29,610   360,655 
Facility rent   4,661,917   416,977   5,078,894 
Equipment and facility maintenance   807,117   72,191   879,308 
Consultant fees   636,806   56,958   693,764 
Equipment purchases   482,376   43,145   525,521 
Board expenses      20,624   20,624 
Staff travel   76,299   6,824   83,123 
Legal fees      25,678   25,678 
Accounting fees      47,590   47,590 
 
TOTAL EXPENSES  $ 150,094,294  $ 2,174,166  $ 152,268,460 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
  Change in net assets     $ 13,373 
  Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
   to net cash used in operating activities: 
    (Increase) decrease in: 
      Cash – client trust funds    (  4,930) 
      Contracts receivable - state of California    (  2,144,162) 
      Receivable from Intermediate Care Facility vendors      7,675,042 
      Prepaid expenses      210,822 
      Other assets    (  25,903) 
      Receivable from state for accrued vacation  
       and other leave benefits    (  81,859) 
      Receivable from state for deferred rent    (  1,320,066) 
    Increase (decrease) in: 
      Accounts payable      1,087,623 
      Accrued salaries      98,389 
      Accrued vacation and other leave benefits      81,859 
      Payable to Department of Developmental Services    (  7,556,774) 
      Deferred rent liability      1,320,066 
      Unexpended client trust funds      14,813 
          Net Cash Used In Operating Activities    (  631,707) 
 
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS    (  631,707) 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR      6,786,718 
 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR     $ 6,155,011 
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), doing business as 
Harbor Regional Center, was incorporated on May 3, 1977 as a California nonprofit 
corporation for the purpose of operating Harbor Regional Center and related activities.  
Prior to incorporation, the Foundation was operated by a medical association.  The 
Foundation was organized in accordance with the provisions of the Lanterman 
Developmental Disabilities Services Act (the Act) of the Welfare and Institutions Code of 
the State of California.  In accordance with the Act, the Foundation provides diagnostic 
evaluations, client service coordination, and lifelong planning services for persons with 
developmental disabilities and their families. The areas served include the Los Angeles 
County Health Districts of Bellflower, Harbor, Long Beach, and Torrance.   
 
The Act includes governance provisions regarding the composition of the Foundation’s 
board of trustees.  The Act states that the board shall be comprised of individuals with 
demonstrated interest in, or knowledge of, developmental disabilities, and other relevant 
characteristics, and requires that a minimum of 50 percent of the governing board be 
persons with developmental disabilities or their parents or legal guardians; and that no less 
than 25 percent of the members of the governing board shall be persons with 
developmental disabilities.  In addition, a member of a required advisory committee, 
composed of persons representing the various categories of providers from which the 
Foundation purchases client services, shall serve as a member of the regional center board. 
To comply with the Act, the Foundation’s board of trustees includes persons with 
developmental disabilities, or their parents or legal guardians, who receive services from 
the Foundation and a client service provider of the Foundation. 
 
The Foundation contracts with the State of California Department of Developmental 
Services (DDS) to operate a regional center for individuals with developmental disabilities 
and their families.  Foundation contracts with the DDS total $146,472,172 for the 2013-
2014 contract year and are subject to budget amendments.  As of June 30, 2014, actual net 
expenditures under the 2013-2014 contract were $139,252,945. 
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The Foundation is required to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to three classes of net assets:  unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted net assets.  Accordingly, the net assets of the Foundation are 
classified and reported as described below: 
 

Unrestricted Net Assets – Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions. 
 
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that may or will be met either by actions of the Foundation and/or the 
passage of time. As the restrictions are satisfied, temporarily restricted net assets 
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the accompanying 
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
 
Permanently Restricted Net Assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions that the corpus be invested in perpetuity and only the income be made 
available for program operations in accordance with donor restrictions. Such 
income generally includes interest, dividends, and realized and unrealized earnings 
from the corpus. 

 
As of June 30, 2014, the Foundation had no temporarily or permanently restricted net 
assets. 
 
Contributions 
 
Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently 
restricted support depending on the existence and nature of any donor restrictions. 
 
Use of Estimates and Assumptions 
 
Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and expenses.  
Actual results could vary from the estimates that were assumed in preparing the financial 
statements.   
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all highly liquid 
instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  At 
June 30, 2014 and throughout the year, the Foundation has maintained cash balances in its 
bank in excess of federally insured limits.  The Foundation has not experienced any losses 
in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and 
cash equivalents. 
 
Certificates of Deposit  
 
The Foundation accounts for certificates of deposit at fair value.  Fair value is defined as 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.   Accounting standards 
have established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques 
used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the 
lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 
measurements).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 
 

• Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities that the Foundation has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
Certificates of deposit are financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis in the accompanying statement of financial position.  Generally, identical 
instruments to certificates of deposit are not traded in active markets and, as such, fair 
value is based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques such as 
discounted cash flows and observable inputs for similar instruments.  Therefore, the 
certificates of deposit are classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 
 
At June 30, 2014, the Foundation held $67,379 in certificates of deposit.  
 
Contracts Receivable - State of California 
 
Contracts receivable and contract support are recorded on the accrual method as related 
expenses are incurred. 
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Receivables from Intermediate Care Facility Vendors 
 
The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has approved federal financial 
participation in the funding of the day and transportation services related to the 
Foundation’s Intermediate Care Facility (ICF) services.  The federal rules allow for only 
one provider of the ICF service, requiring all the Medicaid funding for the ICF resident to 
go through the applicable vendors.  The Foundation receives a 1.5% administrative fee 
based on the funds received to cover the additional workload. 
 
The DDS has directed the Foundation to prepare billings for these services on behalf of the 
ICFs and submit a separate state claim report for these services.  The Foundation was 
directed to reduce the amount of their regular state claim to DDS by the dollar amount of 
these services.  Reimbursement for these services will be received from the ICFs.  DDS 
advances the amount according to the state claim to the ICFs.  The ICFs are then required 
to pass on the payments received, as well as the Foundation’s administrative fee to the 
Foundation within 30 days of receipt of funds from the State Controller’s Office. 
 
State Equipment 
 
Pursuant to the terms of the state of California contract, equipment purchases become the 
property of the state and, accordingly, are charged as expenses when incurred.  For the 
year ended June 30, 2014, equipment purchases totaled approximately $526,000. 
 
Accrued Vacation and Other Employee Benefits 
 
The Foundation has accrued a liability for leave benefits earned.  However, such benefits 
are reimbursed under the state contract only when actually paid.  The Foundation has also 
recorded a receivable from the state for the accrued leave benefits to reflect the future 
reimbursement of such benefits. 
 
Deferred Rent 
 
The Foundation leases office facilities under a lease agreement that is subject to scheduled 
acceleration of rental payments.  The scheduled rent increases are amortized evenly over 
the life of the lease.  The deferred rent liability represents the difference between the cash 
payments made and the amount expensed since inception of the lease.  The Foundation has 
recorded a receivable from the state for the deferred rent liability to reflect the future 
reimbursement of the additional rent expense recognized. 
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NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Allocation of Expenses 
 
The statement of functional expenses allocate expenses for all funds to the program and 
supporting service categories based on a direct cost basis for purchase of services and 
salaries and related expenses.  Operating expenses are allocated based on a percentage of 
salaries and related expenses per category to total salaries and related expenses, except for 
certain expenses that are designated as program or supporting services. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation has received tax-exempt status from the Internal Revenue Service and 
California Franchise Tax Board under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and 
Section 23701(d) of the Revenue and Taxation Code.  Tax-exempt status is generally 
granted to nonprofit entities organized for charitable or mutual benefit purposes. 
 
The Foundation recognizes the financial statement benefit of tax positions, such as filing 
status of tax-exempt, only after determining that the relevant tax authority would more 
likely than not sustain the position following an audit.  The Foundation is subject to 
potential income tax audits on open tax years by any taxing jurisdiction in which it 
operates.  The statute of limitations for federal and California state purposes is generally 
three and four years, respectively.    
 
Subsequent Events 
 
The Foundation’s management has evaluated subsequent events from the statement of 
position date through December 2, 2014, the date at when the financial statements were 
available to be issued for the year ended June 30, 2014, and determined that there were no 
other items to disclose. 
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NOTE 2 – Cash - Client Trust Funds 
 
The Foundation functions as custodian for the receipt of certain governmental payments 
and resulting disbursements made on behalf of the Foundation’s clients.  The following is a 
summary of operating cash activity for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 
  Social Security and other client support received     $ 6,671,402 
  Residential care and other disbursements      6,647,592 
  Support over disbursements      23,810 
  Changes to reconcile support over disbursements to net cash 
   used in support and care activities: 
    Decrease in receivable from state and federal agencies    (  10,285) 
    Decrease in amounts due to the Foundation    (  8,595) 
 
  Net cash provided for support and care activities      4,930 
  Cash at beginning of year      916,857 
 
  Cash at end of year     $ 921,787 
 
 
NOTE 3 – Contracts Receivable/Contract Advances – State of California 
 
As of June 30, 2014, the DDS had advanced the Foundation approximately $36,446,000 
under the contracts with the DDS.  For financial statement presentation, to the extent there 
are claims receivable, these advances have been offset against the claims receivable from 
the state as follows: 
 
 Contracts receivable  $ 40,988,964 
 Contract advances (  36,445,663) 
 
    Net contracts receivable  $ 4,543,301 
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NOTE 4 – Short-Term Borrowings 
 
The Foundation has a revolving note with a bank whereby it may borrow up to 
$15,000,000 until June 30, 2014, and then up to $36,000,000 until the earlier date of 
October 1, 2014 or the effective date of a state of California budget with respect to the 
State General Fund for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2014 then $17,000,000 until the 
maturity date of June 30, 2015.  Interest is payable monthly at the greater of 3.5% or 1% 
below the bank’s prime rate.  No amount was outstanding on the revolving note as of June 
30, 2014. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Leases and Related Party Transactions 
 
The Foundation is obligated under operating leases expiring November 30, 2039 for its 
Torrance facilities and December 31, 2015 for its Long Beach facilities.  These leases 
generally require the lessee to pay all maintenance, insurance, and other operating 
expenses, and are subject to periodic adjustment based on price indexes or contract 
stipulated annual rate increases. 
 
Rental expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $5,078,894.   
 
Rent expense consisted of the following for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 
 Rent and operating expense reimbursement  $ 3,758,828 
 Deferred rent   1,320,066 
 
   $ 5,078,894 
 
The Foundation is leasing its main office facilities from Del Harbor Foundation (Del 
Harbor).  Del Harbor, a separately incorporated California nonprofit corporation formed to 
facilitate and augment the coordination of services and programs of the Foundation or those 
which benefit clients of the Foundation, shares common management with the Foundation.  
During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Foundation paid rent and operating expense 
reimbursement to Del Harbor of $2,805,934. 
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NOTE 5 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Leases and Related Party Transactions (Continued) 
 
Future minimum lease payments for the Foundation under noncancellable operating leases 
that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one-year as of June 30, 2014 are as 
follows: 
 

 Year Ending         Less: Sublease 
 June 30,   Del Harbor   Other   Income   Total  
 

 2015  $ 2,182,326  $ 1,087,083 ( $ 202,059)  $ 3,067,350 
 2016   2,247,796   1,080,458 (  138,540)   3,189,714 
 2017   2,315,229   1,074,766 (  95,941)   3,294,054 
 2018   2,384,686   1,107,175      3,491,861 
 2019   2,456,227   1,140,457      3,596,684 
 Thereafter   69,458,469   32,428,975      101,887,444 
 

   $ 81,044,733  $ 37,918,914 ( $ 436,540)  $ 118,527,107 
 
Collective Bargaining Agreements 
 
The Foundation retains approximately 80 percent of its labor force through Social Services 
Union, Local 721 Services Employees International Union, AFL-CIO.  This labor force is 
subject to collective bargaining agreements and, as such, renegotiation of such agreements 
could expose the Foundation to an increase in hourly costs and work stoppages.  The 
current agreements are generally effective through March 24, 2016. 
 
Contingencies 
 
The Foundation is dependent on continued funding provided by the DDS to operate and 
provide services for its clients.  The Foundation’s contract with the DDS provides funding 
for services under the Lanterman Act.  In the event that the operations of the Foundation 
result in a deficit position at the end of any contract year, the DDS may reallocate surplus 
funds within the state of California system to supplement the Foundation’s funding.  Should 
a system-wide deficit occur, the DDS is required to report to the Governor of California 
and the appropriate fiscal committee of the State Legislature and recommend actions to 
secure additional funds or reduce expenditures.  The DDS’s recommendations are 
subsequently reviewed by the governor and the Legislature and a decision is made with 
regard to specific actions. 
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NOTE 5 – Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 
 
Contingencies (Continued) 
 
In accordance with the terms of the DDS contract, an audit may be performed by an 
authorized state representative.  Should such an audit disclose any unallowable costs, the 
Foundation may be liable to the state for reimbursement of such costs.  In the opinion of 
the Foundation’s management, the effect of any disallowed costs would be immaterial to 
the financial statements at June 30, 2014, and for the year then ended. 
 
The Foundation has elected to finance its unemployment insurance using the prorated cost-
of-benefits method.  Under this method, the Foundation is required to reimburse the state 
of California for benefits paid to its former employees. 
 
Legal Proceedings 
 
The Foundation is subject to various legal proceedings and claims arising in the ordinary 
course of its business.  While the ultimate outcome of these matters is difficult to predict, 
management believes that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material 
adverse effect on the Foundation’s financial position or activities. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – Retirement Plan 
 
Effective July 1, 2004, the Foundation restated its retirement plan and adopted a prototype 
profit-sharing plan with a 401(k) feature.  All employees are eligible to enter the plan 
immediately upon employment.  Participants can contribute up to the federal maximum 
limit.  The Foundation is not required to match a participant’s contribution.  The 
Foundation may make discretionary employer contributions to the plan allocated in direct 
proportion to the participant’s pay.  Loans are permitted, subject to the terms of the plan 
document and applicable contract. 
 
The total employer retirement expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 was approximately 
$1,350,000. 
 
In addition, effective June 1, 2005, the Foundation established a 457(b) deferred 
compensation plan.  Loans are not permitted. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 Federal Grantor/   Federal    Grant 
 Pass-Through Grantor/   CFDA   Identification   Federal 
 Grant Title   Number   Number   Expenditures 
 
U.S. Department of Education 
 Passed through State of 
 California Department of 
 Developmental Services 
 
Special Education – Grants for Infants 
 and Families 84.181 HD099007  $ 1,383,978 
 
 
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the federal award 
activity of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. and is prepared based on 
state contract budget allocations.  Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on 
the accrued basis of accounting.  The information in this schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Therefore, some amounts presented in this 
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic 
financial statements.     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
To the Board of Trustees of 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofit 
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and 
the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 2, 2014.   
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Harbor 
Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Developmental 
Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to 
be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Harbor Developmental Disabilities 
Foundation, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the organization’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Long Beach, California 
December 2, 2014 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE  

REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133 
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with 
the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Harbor Developmental 
Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014.  
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Harbor 
Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s major federal programs based on our audit 
of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards 
and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Harbor Developmental 
Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. complied, in all 
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended 
June 30, 2014. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance 
 
Management of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc. is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our audit of 
compliance, we considered Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance 
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance 
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Harbor Developmental Disabilities Foundation, Inc.’s 
internal control over compliance.  
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material 
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility 
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.  
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based 
on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for 
any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
Long Beach, California 
December 2, 2014 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued – Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified? – No 
 
2. Significant deficiencies identified? – None reported 
 
3. Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? – No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major programs 
 
1. Material weakness(es) identified? – No 
 
2. Significant deficiencies identified? – None reported 
 
3. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs? – Unmodified 
 
4. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 

Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? – No 
 
5. Identification of major programs:  
 Special Education – Grants for Infants and Families CFDA #84.181. 
 
6. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs was 

$300,000. 
 
7. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? – Yes 
 
 
SECTION II – FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT 
  
None 
 
 
SECTION III –  FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD 
                         PROGRAMS AUDIT 
 
None 
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APPENDIX C 
 

BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

The information in this Appendix concerning The Depository Trust Company, New York, New 
York (“DTC”), and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from DTC and the Corporation and the 
Authority take no responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof.  The Corporation and the 
Authority cannot and do not give any assurances that DTC, Direct  Participants (as defined below) or 
Indirect Participants (as defined below) will distribute to the Beneficial Owners (a) payments of interest, 
principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Bonds, (b) certificates representing ownership interest in 
or other confirmation of ownership interest in the Bonds, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC 
or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the Bonds, or that they will do so on a timely 
basis, or that DTC, Direct Participants or Indirect Participants will act in the manner described in this 
Official Statement.  The Authority, the Corporation and HRC are not responsible or liable for the failure 
of DTC or any DTC Direct or Indirect Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a Beneficial 
Owner with respect to the Bonds or an error or delay relating thereto.  The current “Rules” applicable to 
DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “Procedures” of DTC to 
be followed in dealing with DTC’s Direct and Indirect Participants are on file with DTC. 

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered 
securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued 
for each maturity of the Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited 
with DTC. 

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a 
“banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 
Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial 
Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 issues of million U.S. and 
non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 
100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the 
post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited 
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ 
accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants 
include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities 
Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing 
agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AA+.”  The 
DTC Rules applicable to DTC’s Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.  The information on such website is not 
incorporated herein by reference. 

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, 
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual 
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect 
Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
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purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of 
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant 
through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership 
interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration 
in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  
DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the 
identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be 
the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account 
of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. .  Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to take 
certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 
Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents.  For 
example, Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for 
their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial 
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices 
be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such issue to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., 
or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to 
credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information 
from the Corporation or the Trustee, on a payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown 
on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing 
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in 
bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of 
DTC nor its nominee, the Trustee, the Corporation or the Authority, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of such principal, premium, if any, and 
interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC) is the responsibility of the Corporation or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct 
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial 
Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
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DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered as 
described in the Indenture. 

The Corporation or the Authority may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry 
transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository).  In that event, certificates will be printed and 
delivered. 
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